/	AD-	A073 40		VAL AIR	DEVELO	SIGNAL	CENTER	WARMINS	TER PA	COMMU	NICAE	TC F/	6 17/2	
	UNC	LASSIFI	ED	NAD	C-79153	5-40		_				N		
		OF 2							And the second s					
			an a	T-I						-2-2-	H	₽ ⁵ H ₽en	k	
- The second sec				Inc. of Parallel			TTNET T			Į.				
	Ìι.							PC 0.0		ана аралистика (1990)	P.			
			E	1 Sel	E	t Andread [-	
			- Hinita					$\frac{\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \right) + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \right) + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2} \right) + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2$						
		1.46			1									



REPORT NO. NADC-79153-40 31 1910 AD A 0 7 3 4 0 TIES NARROWBAND SIGNAL CONVERSION UNIT DESIGN REPORT . Communication Navigation Technology Directorate NAVAL AIR DEVELOPMENT CENTER Warminster, Pennsylvania 18974 30 July 1979 AIRTASK NO. WF21-200-000 Work Unit No.ZC902 0 WF31200000 FILE COPY APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE; DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED. Prepared for NAVAL AIR SYSTEMS COMMAND Department of the Navy Washington, DC 20361 ORIGINAL CONTAINS COLOR PLATES ALL DEC REPRODUCTIONS WILL BE IN BLACK AND WHITE. 393 533 79 08 31 001

NOTICES

REPORT NUMBERING SYSTEM - The numbering of technical project reports issued by the Naval Air Development Center is arranged for specific identification purposes. Each number consists of the Center acronym, the calendar year in which the number was assigned, the sequence number of the report within the specific calendar year, and the official 2-digit correspondence code of the Command Office or the Functional Directorate responsible for the report. For example: Report No. NADC-78015-20 indicates the fifteeth Center report for the year 1978, and prepared by the Systems Directorate. The numerical codes are as follows:

CODE

OFFICE OR DIRECTORATE

「「「「「「「「「「「「」」」」

- 00 Commander, Naval Air Development Center
- 01 Technical Director, Naval Air Development Center
- 02 Comotroller
- 10 **Directorate Command Projects**
- 20 Systems Directorate
- 30 Sensors & Avionics Technology Directorate
- 40 Communication Navigation Technology Directorate
- 50 Software Computer Directorate
- 60 Aircraft & Crew Systems Technology Directorate
- 70 Planning Assessment Resources
- 80 Engineering Support Group

PRODUCT ENDORSEMENT - The discussion or instructions concerning commercial products herein do not constitute an endorsement by the Government nor do they convey or imply the license or right to use such products.

APPROVED BY: William 7. Lynn fr DATE: 2-30-79

REPORT DOCUMENTATIO	ON PAGE	READ INSTRUCTIONS		
REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSION NO.	3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER		
NADC-79153-40				
TITLE (and Substitio)		S. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED		
TIES Narrowband Signal Convers	ion Unit	Final Report		
Design Report		-		
		6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER		
AUTHOR(+)		S. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(+)		
Yau-Foon Lui				
	C35	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK		
Communication Navigation Techno	ology Directorate	AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS		
Code 40, Naval Air Development	Center	AIRTASK NO. WF21-200-000		
Warminster, PA 18974				
Neval Air Systeme Command		12. REPORT DATE		
Department of the Navy		30 JULY 1979		
Washington, DC 20361 -		120		
A MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(I dill	erent trem Centrelling Office)	15. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)		
		UNCLASSIFIED		
		IS. DECLASSIFICATION DOWNGRADING		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC	RELEASE; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed onto 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed onto 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessed TTES Descente	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed only 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse olds if necessar TIES Program Communication	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT and in Block 20, if different fro	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed onto S. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse olds if necessar TIES Program Communication Digital Signal Processing	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC D. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed onto S. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES D. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessary TIES Program Communication Digital Signal Processing	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed onto SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessary TIES Program Communication Digital Signal Processing ASSIRACT (Continue on reverse side if necessary	RELEASE ; DISTRIBUT	ION UNLIMITED.		
APPROVED FOR PUBLIC APPROVED FOR PUBLIC OUSTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the electronic and SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES AUPPLEMENTARY NOTES AUPPLEMENTARY AUPPLEMENTARY NOTES AUPPLEMENTARY AUPP	RELEASE; DISTRIBUT read in Block 20, 11 different fro r, and identify by block member) gital signal process is (AM/FM/SSB) in t cal signal processi ious functions to b as circuits design report	Now UNLIMITED.		

TABLE OF CONTENTS

and the second states and

LIST OF FIGURES	2
LIST OF TABLES	5
1. SUMMARY	6
2. BASIC CONCEPTS	6
2.1 SAMPLING	6
2.2 A/D CONVERSION	9
3. SIGNAL PROCESSING ALGORITHMS	9
3.1 AM TRANSMIT	9
3.2 AM RECEIVE	14
3.3 FM TRANSMIT	26
3.4 FM RECEIVE	30
3.5 SSB TRANSMIT	30
3.6 SSB RECEIVE	37
4. CRITICAL FUNCTION DESIGNS	37
4.1 DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN	37
4.2 MACRO INSTRUCTIONS	60
4.3 ARCTANGENT DEMODULATOR	62
5. NBSCU CIRCUIT DESIGNS	66
5.1 ANALOG INTERFACE CIRCUITS	66
5.2 DIGITAL CIRCUITS	66
6. NBSCU SPECIFICATIONS	92
6.1 SAMPLE AND HOLD	92
6.2 A/D CONVERTER	93
6.3 D/A CONVERTER	93
6.4 SIGNAL PROCESSOR	94
APPENDIX A - NOISE SOURCES	A-1
APPENDIX B - FIR FILTER DESIGN	B-1
Justification	
By	1
UISU.	
Availe of or	
Dist spacial	
-1- A	
	-

LIST OF FIGURES

Title

Figure

Page

1	Simplified TIES Architecture	7
2	(a) Bandpass Signal	8
	(b) Sampled Signal Spectrum	8
3	(a) Bandpass Signal	8
	(b) Effect of Under Sampling	8
4	(a) Bandpass Signal	10
	(b) Frequency Translation by Sampling	10
5	(a) Sampled Signal	11
	(b) Filter Characteristic	11
	(c) Signal Recovery by Filtering	11
6	Simplified Sample and Hold Circuit	12
7	AM Transmit Algorithm	13
8	AM Transmit Spectra	15
9	AM Receive Algorithm	16
10	Sum of Product Computation for Convolution Filter	18
11	Filtering of Frequency Translated Signal	19
	(a) Real Channel	19
	(b) Quad Channel	19
12	Alternate Method for Filtering Frequency Translated Signal	20
	(a) Real Channel	20
	(b) Quad Channel	20
13	Difference Between the Two Computations for $N = 4$	21
14	Dual Channel Filtering of Frequency Translated Signal	22
15	Real and Quad Components of Frequency Translated Signal	23
16	AM Receive Spectra	25
17	FM Transmit Algorithm	27
18	FM Transmit Spectra	29
19	FM Receive Algorithm	31
20	FM Receive Spectra	32
21	SSB Transmit Algorithm	33

LIST OF FIGURES (Continued)

Title

Figure

Page

and and

22	SSR Transmit Spectra	34
23	(a) DER Spectra	36
	(L) COR Granter	36
	(b) SSB Spectra	30
	(c) SSB Spectra Obtained by Filtering DSB Signal	36
24	SSB Receive Algorithm	38
25	SSB Receive Spectra	39
26	Second Order Section of an IIR Filter	41
27	Frequency Response for 10 Stage 1:2 Digital Filter	48
28	Frequency Response for 10 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	49
29	Frequency Response for 25 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	50
30	Frequency Response for 55 Stage 1:1 Digital Filter	51
31	Frequency Response for 16 Stage 1:4 (SSB) Digital Filter	52
32	Frequency Response for 16 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	53
33	Frequency Response for 10 Stage 1:2 Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	54
34	Frequency Response for 10 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	55
35	Frequency Response for 25 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	56
36	Frequency Response for 55 Stage 1:1 Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	57
37	Frequency Response for 16 Stage 1:4 (SSB) Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	58
38	Frequency Response for 16 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter Rounded off to 12 Bits	59
39	Macroinstruction Subfield Definition	61
40	Real and Quad Components of a Complex Number	64
41	Simplified Diagram for TIES NBSCU	67
42	NBSCU Analog Interface and Clock Generator Circuits	68
43	Detailed Block Diagram for NBSCU	69
44	NBSCU Parameters Loading Circuit	70
45	NBSCU Buffer Loading Circuit	72

- 3 -

and the stand of an and the second of the second of the second

LIST OF FIGURES (Continued)

Figure

Title

Page

States and

46	Reset and Control Circuit for Transfering Data Into High Speed RAM	73
47	Program Counter Control Circuit	75
48	Addressing Circuit for High Speed Rams	76
49	Control Circuit for Convolutional Filtering	77
50	High Speed RAMs Control Circuit	79
51	Control Circuit for Multipliers	80
52	Mode Control Circuit for Arithmatic Logic Units	81
53	Carry Control Circuit for Arithmatic Logic Units	82
54	I/O Circuit for ALUs and Associated Registers	83
55	Control Circuit for Registers	84
56	Reprocessing Scheme for Filtered Data	85
57	Reprocessing of Filtered Data for AM Transmit, SSB Transmit/Receive and Arctangent Demodulation for FM Pesseive Modes	96
58	Arctangent Demodulator Algorithm	87
59	FM Modulation Algorithm	80
60	Addressing Circuit for Constants and Coefficients BAMe	90
61	I/O Circuit for Data Storage RAMe	91
62	Circuit Boards for TIES NBSCU	95
AL	Aperture Error in Sample-and-Holds	A-5
A2	Droop in Sample-and-Holds	A-5
A3	Flow Graph for FIR Filter	A-6
B1	Window Functions	B-2

- 4 -

LIST OF TABLES

Title

Table

able	Title	Page
1	Digital Filter Specifications for AM Transmit Mode	14
2	Digital Filter Specifications for AM Receive Mode	24
3	Digital Filter Specifications for FM Transmit Mode	30
4	Digital Filter Specifications for SSB Transmit Mode	35
5	Digital Filter Specifications for SSB Receive Mode	37
6	Impulse Response for 10 Stage 1:2 Digital Filter	42
7	Impulse Response for 10 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	43
8	Impulse Response for 25 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	44
9	Impulse Response for 55 Stage 1:1 Digital Filter	45
10	Impulse Response for 16 Stage 1:4 (SSB) Digital Filter	46
11	Impulse Response for 16 Stage 1:4 Digital Filter	47
12	Phase Determination of Arctangent Demodulator	65

1. SUMMARY

The objective of the TIES (Tactical Information Exchange System) program is the integration of the presently used separate CNI (Communication, Navigation and Identification) subsystems into a large system that is programmable, reconfigurable, uses common modules, and can process a variety of signals simultaneously that are currently performed one at a time by dedicated hardware. The system is partitioned into three parts — the frequency conversion unit, the frequency distribution unit, and the signal conversion unit as shown in figure 1.

Because of the difference in signal structure, the signal conversion unit is further broken down into the narrow band unit which handles narrow band signals such as AM, FM, SSB, etc., and the wideband unit which handles signals such as TACAN, IFF, JTIDS, and GPS in the foreseeable future.

As an in house effort to investigate the narrowband signal processing requirements for TIES, a narrowband signal conversion unit (NBSCU) was designed that will handle AM, FM, and SSB signals in the half duplex mode using presently available digital hardware. The unit uses FIR (Finite Impulse Response) filters because FM signals are extremely phase sensitive and FIR filters have exactly linear phase response.

The Arctangent algorithm is used for signal demodulation because of its efficiency. The amplitude of the signal is given by the equation $A = R\cos\theta + Q\sin\theta$. The angle θ is given by $\theta = \tan^{-1}(Q/R)$. In both cases, R and Q are the real and quadrature components of the incoming signal that was frequency translated to baseband.

Detailed descriptions of various functions to be performed by the NBSCU; processing algorithms for various signals, as well as circuits designed to accomplish these functions are presented in the following pages.

2. BASIC CONCEPTS

2.1 Sampling

In order to have a better understanding of the work involved, the basic concept of sampling has to be reviewed. The sampling theorem states that if a band limited signal is sampled at a sufficiently high rate, the original signal can be reconstructed by a set of interpolating functions on the sampled values of the signal. The minimum sampling rate is the well known Nyquist rate of twice the highest frequency of the incoming signal. The sampled spectrum of a signal is shown in figure 2.

Undersampling will cause the repeated spectrum to fold over one another causing aliasing. The reconstruction of the original signal, depending on how severe aliasing is, becomes extremely difficult and can only be recovered with distortion. The amount of distortion will depend on the amount of undersampling and on the shape of the spectrum of the signal being sampled. This is shown in figure 3.

If the incoming signal is at a relatively high frequency, sampling at twice the highest frequency will become impractical. It is known that for a bandpass signal, the sampling rate can be as small as twice the bandwidth of the signal. Another constraint for the bandpass sampling frequency is that the sampling

- 6 -





rate must satisfy the relationship

$$F_s = \frac{2F_h}{INT(F_h/B)}$$

where F_h is the highest signal frequency,

B is the bandwidth of the signal,

INT is the integer value of the quantity.

Therefore, in bandpass sampling, the sampling rate varies between twice to four times the signal bandwidth. Another effect for bandpass sampling is that of frequency translation. This is shown in figure 4.

It can be seen then, the original signal can be recovered independently of the sampling technique by passing the sampled data through a low pass filter with the proper bandwidth as shown in figure 5.

It is important to note that the duration and shape of the pulses in the sampling waveform do not affect the ability to recover the signal from its samples. The task for processing the conventional signals will be to design a set of digital hardware that will perform the interpolating function of input samples to produce the original baseband signal. The state-of-the-art circuit in sampling would be a sample-and-hold circuit which consists of a high speed electronic switch followed by a capacitor. Upon external command, the switch is closed and the capacitor is charged up to the incoming signal level. The switch is then opened and the charge is then held on by the capacitor until the next command for closing the switch comes along. A simple diagram for a sample-and-hold circuit is shown in figure 6. Sample-and-holds normally have unity gain and are non-inverting. There are several noise sources that are inherently associated with sample-and-hold circuits that will be discussed in Appendix A.

2.2 A/D Conversion

The sampled output of the signal has to be converted into a binary number before any processing can be performed. This process is known as A/D conversion and is accomplished by A/D converters. Most commonly used A/D converters are of 2's complement notation due to the inherent advantage of the 2's complement numbering system in hardware processing. Since the input voltage to the converter needs an infinitely large number of binary digits for representation, another source of error will occur due to the finite digit representation of the analog input signal. This will also be discussed in Appendix A. The output digits of the A/D converter will be the inputs to the narrowband processor. To reduce circuit complexity to a minimum only AM/FM/SSB will be processed one function at a time in the half duplex mode.

3. SIGNAL PROCESSING ALGORITHMS

3.1 AM Transmit

The AM transmit algorithm is shown in figure 7.

- 9 -





Figure 5(a) - Sampled Signal (b) - Filter Characteristic (c) - Signal Recovery by Filtering







Audio input ranging from 300 to 3300 Hz is sampled at a rate of 14.4KHz. The sampled input will then go through a digital filter that passes the audio signal, but attenuates signals beyond 4KHz to 50 db. The output will then be interpolated by two identical 1:4 digital filters to change the sampling rate to 230.4KHz. The output of the second filter will be at audio frequency with change in sampling rate only. A constant number, representing the carrier, will be added to this audio signal. By multiplying the resulting samples with the sequence 1, 0, -1, 0, an effective mixing process with samples of a cosine function is obtained. The mixing process causes the signal to shift in frequency by $\pm 57.6KHz$, corresponding to the sum and difference frequencies in analog mixing. This signal is then transmitted through the D/A converter. If the carrier is set to 0, then double sideband suppressed carrier will be obtained. The spectral diagram for the AM transmit chain at points 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 is shown in figure 8. From the diagram, the specifications for the digital filters can be obtained and are shown in table 1.

TABLE 1 - DIGITAL FILTER SPECIFICATIONS FOR AM TRANSMIT MODE

Filter	Frequency (KHz)	Passband (KHz)	Normalized Passband	Stopband (KHz)	Normalized Stopband	Attenuation (db)
1	14.4	0-3.3	0-0.2292	4-7.2	0.2780-0.5	50
2	57.6	0-3.3	0-0.0573	10.4-28.8	0.1806-0.5	50
3	230.4	0-3.3	0-0.01432	53.6-115.2	0.2326-0.5	50

in the second se

3.2 AM Receive

The AM receive algorithm is shown in figure 9. The input signal is converted into an IF frequency of 57.6KHz and sampled at a rate of 230.4KHz. By multiplying the incoming signal by e^{-jwt} the incoming IF frequency is then translated to baseband. At the same time, two channels (one real, one quad) are formed. This can be seen more clearly as follows:

Let f(t) be the incoming signal. Multiplication by $e^{-j2\pi f_0 t}$ yields the following:

 $f(t) \cos 2\pi f_0 t - jf(t) \sin 2\pi f_0 t$

Since f_o is 57.6KHz while the incoming signal is sampled at 230.4KHz, four samples are required for the sine and cosine functions in the above expression. For ease of computation, these samples can be chosen to have the following values:

For the cosine function : 1,0,-1,0.....

For the -sine function : 0,-1,0,1.....

- 14 -







- 16 -

H. F. Jugar B.

Therefore, by changing the signs of the input samples and routing the samples alternately to the 4:1 resampling filter with appropriate zero filling as shown in figure 9, the frequency translation can be accomplished rather easily. The output of the frequency translater will feed the two 4:1 desampling filters on the real and quad channels. However, close examination of the block diagram indicates that the function of the frequency translation can be readily absorbed into that of the two 4:1 filters. This can be seen from the following:

If it is assumed that the 4:1 filter is of N stages (where N can be any integer) with coefficients for the impulse response h_0 , h_1 ,.... h_{N-1} , the output of the filter to a set of input samples is given by the convolution sum,

$$Y(n) = \sum_{k=0}^{N-1} h(k) X (n-k)$$

where $Y_{(n)}$ is the output sample and X(n-k) are the input samples. This process is shown in figure 10.

However, the input data to the 4:1 resampling filter in this case is multiplied by 1,0,-1,0.....for the real channel and by 0,-1,0,1,.....in the quadrature channel. It can be seen that in both channels, alternate samples have value 0 while the signs change alternately for samples that are not zero. Using these input samples for the 4:1 filter, figure 11 is obtained. Notice that instead of multiplying the input samples by 1,0,-1,0...and 0, -1,0,1....for the two channels, the coefficients for the filter can be varied to obtain output samples as shown in figure 12.

Notice also that while the two outputs of the two figures look identical, they are in fact not the same upon close examination. A comparison made between the two methods used for the real channel shows the difference for the case N=4. This is shown in figure 13.

It can be seen clearly that only every fourth output of the two methods are identical. While the other two sets of outputs are different, no difficulty is encountered because in a 4:1 filtering process only one out of every fourth consecutive output is used. Thus, for this application, the functions for the two methods are identical. Consequently, the frequency translation hardware can be eliminated. The filtering process can be simplified by combining the two filters in the two channels into a single filter. This can be accomplished by changing the sign of alternate pairs of coefficients and routing alternate sum of products to two sets of registers for storage. This is shown in figure 14. While this looks more complicated than the single channel operation, it is in fact very simple to implement as will be seen later on.

The baseband signal, due to the process of frequency translation, will be complex. It has a real component as well as a quadrature component as shown in figure 15.

The magnitude of the vector will then be the desired AM output. Two methods can be used for this computation and are given by the following two equations.





- 18 -

NADC-79153-40







- (a) Real Channel(b) Quad Channel

- 19 -





「「「「「「「「「「」」」」



Figure 12 - Alternate Method for Filtering Frequency Translated Signal

(a) Real Channel(b) Quad Channel

- 20 -

and the the

de trader de la la la



the second s

Children a contract of the

Figure 13 - Difference Between the Two Computations for N = 4

S IN THE REAL PROPERTY.

×. .







the law build

The se



1. $A = \sqrt{R^2 + Q^2}$

2. $A = R \cos \theta + Q \sin \theta$

where A = Amplitude of vector

- R = Real component of vector
- Q = Quadrature component of vector
- θ = Phase angle of vector

The first equation is obtained from Pythagoras Theorem while the second equation is obtained from the trigonometric relationship between the sine and cosine functions as follows:

 $\cos \theta = R/A$

 $\sin \theta = Q/A$

Therefore,

 $\cos^2\theta = R \cos \theta / A$

 $\sin^2\theta = Q \sin \theta / A$

Adding the two preceding equations yields:

 $1 = (R \cos \theta + Q \sin \theta) / A$

Multiplication by A on both sides of the expression yields the following equation:

 $A = R \cos \theta + Q \sin \theta$

Since taking the square root of a number is a complicated process, the second method is chosen. Notice that A is the amplitude of a vector and therefore, the sign is always positive. The spectra at points 1,2,3,4,5 for the AM receive mode is shown in figure 16. The specifications for the 4:1 resampling filter are listed in table 2.

TABLE 2 - DIGITAL FILTER SPECIFICATIONS FOR AM RECEIVE MODE

Filter	Sampling Frequency (KHz)	Passband (KHz)	Normalized Passband	Stopband (KHz)	Normalized Stopband	Attenuation (db)
1	230.4	0-3.3	0-0.01432	53.6-115.2	0.2326-0.5	50



Figure 16 - AM Receive Spectra

the state of the second s

3.3 FM Transmit

FM is a form of exponential modulation. In exponential modulation, the modulated wave in phasor form is an exponential function of the message; that is,

$$X_{c}(t) = Re [A_{c}ej\theta_{c}(t)]$$

= $A_c \cos \theta_c(t)$

where $\theta_c(t)$ is a linear function of x(t), the baseband message, and A_c is constant. Furthermore,

$$\theta_c(t) = 2\pi f_c t + \phi(t),$$

so that the carrier frequency f_c is uniquely specified. The second term in the equation, $\phi(t)$, will then be the relative phase angle in the sense that the phasor $ej\theta_c$ differs in angular position from $ej\omega_c t$ by $\phi(t)$. Since frequency is the time derivative of angular position, the instantaneous frequency deviation f(t) can be written as

be in the second second

$$f(t) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{d\phi(t)}{dt}$$

Therefore,

$$\theta_{c}(t) = 2\pi f_{c}t + 2\pi \int_{-\infty}^{t} f(\lambda) d\lambda$$

But the instantaneous frequency is also proportional to the message.

Therefore,

$$f(t) = f_{\Lambda}X(t)$$

The equation for $\theta_{c}(t)$ can be rewritten as follows:

$$\theta_{c}(t) = 2\pi f_{c}(t) + 2\pi f_{\Delta} \int_{x}^{t} (\lambda) d\lambda$$

The modulated wave will then be:

$$X_c(t) = Re [A_c e^{j\theta}c(t)]$$

= Re A_c [cos
$$\theta_c(t)$$
 + j sin $\theta_c(t)$]
= A_c cos[$\omega_c t$ + 2 $\pi f_{\Delta} \int_{x}^{t} (\lambda) d\lambda$]

The algorithm for FM transmit is shown in figure 17.

Audio input is sampled at a rate of 14.4KHz and the sampling rate is up converted to 230.4KHz after filtering and resampling. The output of the filter is then integrated to obtain the phase. The integration process is given by the following equation:

$$Y(n) = X(n) + Y(n-1)$$

- 26 -





Where Y(n) is the present output sample, X(n) is the present input sample, and Y(n-1) is the delayed output sample.

Recall that

$$\theta_{c}(t) = 2\pi f_{c}(t) + 2\pi f_{\Delta} \int_{-\infty}^{t} x(\lambda) d\lambda$$

The product $2\pi f_{\Delta}$ is a scaler and can be incorporated into the filter coefficients.

In order to obtain the desired FM signal, the real part has to be extracted from the function $e^{j\theta}c^{(t)}$ as follows:

 $FM = Re \left[e^{j\theta_{c}(t)}\right]$ $= Re \left[e^{j2\pi f_{c}(t)}\right]\left[e^{j2\pi f_{\Delta}}\int_{-\infty}^{t} x(\lambda)d\lambda\right]$ $Let e^{j2\pi f_{\Delta}}\int_{-\infty}^{t} x(\lambda)d\lambda = e^{j\phi}$ $= \cos \phi + j \sin \phi$

and $e^{j2\pi f_c(t)} = \cos 2\pi f_c(t) + j \sin 2\pi f_c(t)$

Therefore,

Re
$$[e^{j2\pi f_{c}(t)}e^{j2\pi f_{\Delta}}\int_{\infty}^{t} x(\lambda)d\lambda]$$

= Re $[\cos 2\pi f_{c}(t) + j \sin 2\pi f_{c}(t)][\cos \phi + j \sin \phi]$
= $\cos \phi \cos 2\pi f_{c}(t) - \sin \phi \sin 2\pi f_{c}(t)$

If the carrier frequency is chosen to be a quarter of the input sampling rate, then, four samples of the cosine function (which can be chosen to be $1,0,-1,0,\ldots$) and four samples of the sine function (which can be chosen to be $0,1,0,-1,\ldots$) can be used for multiplication to produce the desired output as follows:

 $(\cos\phi)[1,0,-1,0,\ldots] - (\sin\phi)[0,1,0,-1,\ldots]$

= $\cos \phi$, - $\sin \phi$, - $\cos \phi$, + $\sin \phi$, +

Therefore, the output, Y(n) (corresponding to ϕ in the above expression), from the integration process can be used as an address to obtain the sine and cosine values of Y(n). By changing the sign of every other pair of samples, the frequency translation is completed. The FM transmit spectra is shown in figure 18. The specifications for the filters are listed in table 3.



でいったのというという

- 29 -

- 29 -

Filter	Sampling Frequency (KHz)	Passband (KHz)	Normalized Passband	Stopband (KHz)	Normalized Stopband	Attenuation (db)
1	14.4	0-3.3	0-0.2292	4-7.2	0.2780-0.5	50
2	57.6	0-3.3	0-0.0573	10.4-28.8	0.1806-0.5	50
3	230.4	0-3.3	0-0.0143	53.6-115.2	0.2326-0.5	50

TABLE 3 - DIGITAL FILTER SPECIFICATIONS FOR FM TRANSMIT MODE

3.4 FM Receive

The algorithm for the FM receive mode is shown in figure 19. As can be seen, it is identical to the AM receive mode with the addition of a differentiator at the output of the arctangent demodulator. The input to the differentiator is the phase output of the arctangent demodulator. Output of the differentiator will be that of frequency. The FM receive spectra at points 1,2,3,4,5,6 are shown in the FM receive algorithm in figure 20.

The specifications for the filters will be the same as those for the AM receive mode. As for the differentiator, in the frequency domain, it will have a linear slope in the frequency band of interest.

3.5 Single Side Band Transmit

The single sideband signal can be obtained from the double sideband signal by suppressing the carrier and filtering out one of the sidebands (upper or lower sideband). The suppression of the carrier can be easily done by adjusting the constant added to the output waveform before frequency translation. However, since the two sidebands are only several hundred hertz apart, the filter has to be extremely selective and represents a relatively large load on the multipliers. Consequently, this approach is abandoned.

The algorithm for single sideband transmit is shown on figure 21. Audio signals ranging from 300 to 3300 Hz are sampled at 7.2KHz and frequency translated 1800 Hz to DC frequency by multiplying the input by $e^{\pm j2\pi}(1800)$. The positive sign indicates a frequency up shift to the right of the DC frequency while a negative sign indicates a down shift to the left of the frequency origin. Due to the frequency translation process, the signal is split into the real and quadrature components. A low pass selectivity filter will then eliminate one of the sidebands depending on which way the frequency translation took place. This can be seen more clearly on the spectra diagram for single sideband transmit on figure 22 in which the spectra at points 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7,8 on the SSB transmit algorithm are shown.

The signal then goes through three interpolating filters to convert the sampling rate to 230.4KHz. By multiplying the signal with 4 samples of








Figure 22 - SSB Transmit Spectra

- 34 -

 $e^{\pm j(2\pi 57600)t}$, a frequency translation of 57.6 KHz is accomplished. The real part of this signal is the desired single sideband waveform. To determine whether upper sideband or lower sideband is used, one of the frequency translation processes is chosen to have a fixed shift (up or down). If it is assumed that the 57.6 KHz translation has an up shift, a down shift for the 1.8 KHz translation will produce upper sideband while an up shift of 1.8 KHz will produce lower sideband. Again, the samples for frequency translation are chosen to be the two sets of samples $(1,0,-1,0,\ldots; 0,1,0,-1,\ldots)$ for the sine and cosine functions so that multiplication is reduced to a minimum. For the 1.8 KHz translation, we have the following:

 $X(n)[\cos 2\pi 1800t \pm j \sin 2\pi 1800t]$

 $= X(n) [(1,0,-1,0,\ldots) \pm j (0,1,0,-1,\ldots)]$

which is complex.

The case for the 57.6 KHz translation is different because the input to the frequency translator is a complex number. Let the input complex numbers be represented by x + jy. The output of the frequency translator is then given by the following:

 $(x + jy)[\cos (2\pi 57600)t + j \sin (2\pi 57600)t]$

Taking the real parts yield

 $x \cos (2\pi 57600)t - y \sin (2\pi 57600)t$

Therefore, only every other sample in each channel is needed to produce the output if four samples of sine and cosine are used.

Notice that the final output is not the same as that of AM double sideband with the carrier and one sideband filtered out. This can be seen clearly in figure 23. The difference being that, in using this method of modulation, the transmitted signal is centered on 57.6 KHz, while filtering the carrier and one sideband of the double sideband AM signal produce a signal that is offset from the carrier frequency of 57.6 KHz. If a tone is used as an example, AM modulation will produce the spectrum shown in figure 23(a). SSB modulation which will be used for the NBSCU will produce the spectrum in figure 23(b). By filtering the AM signal, the resulting spectrum is shown in figure 23(c). The difference is obvious. The filter specifications are listed in table 4.

TABLE 4 - DIGITAL FILTER SPECIFICATIONS FOR SSB TRANSMIT MODE

Filter	Sampling Frequency (KHz)	Passband (KHz)	Normalized Passband	Stopband (KHz)	Normalized Stopband	Attenuation (db)
1	7.2	0-1.65	0-0.2292	2-3.6	0.2780-0.5	50
2	14.4	0-1.65	0-0.1146	5.2-7.2	0.3610-0.5	50
3	57.6	0-1.65	0-0.0287	12.4-28.8	0.2153-0.5	50
4	230.4	0-1.65	0-0.0072	55.6-115.2	0.2410-0.5	50

- 35 -



a set of the set of th

Figure 23 - (a) DSB Spectra (b) SSB Spectra (c) SSB Spectra Obtained by Filtering DSB Signal

- 36 -

3.6 Single Sideband Receive

The single sideband receive mode is processed similarly to that of single sideband transmit mode except in the reverse order. The algorithm is shown in figure 24 and the spectra at points 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 are shown in figure 25.

If the 57.6 KHz frequency translation is an up shift operation, the result would be lower sideband. If it is a down shift operation, the result would be upper sideband provided that the 1.8 KHz frequency translation is an up shift operation in both cases. The filter specifications are shown in table 5.

TABLE 5 - DIGITAL FILTER SPECIFICATIONS FOR SSB RECEIVE MODE

Filter	Sampling Frequency (KHz)	Passband (KHz)	Normalized Passband	Stopband (KHz)	Normalized Stopband	Attenuation (db)
1	230.4	0-1.65	0-0.0072	55.6-115.2	0.2410-0.5	50
2	57.6	0-1.65	0-0.0287	12.4-28.8	0.2153-015	50
3	14.4	0-1.65	0-0.1146	5.2-3.6	0.3610-0.5	50

4. CRITICAL FUNCTION DESIGNS

As can be seen from all the algorithms, the most important tasks the NBSCU has to perform are those of filtering and arctangent demodulation. These are discussed in the following paragraphs. The the second s

4.1 Digital Filter Design

The design of the digital filter is the most important task for the NBSCU as it is used in all the mod/demod algorithms. In general, a digital filter performs the equivalent of an analog filter in that it is frequency selective. However, the same digital filter can be made to be a differentiator or a Hilbert transformer by varying a set of tap weights for the filter. Unlike analog filters, which can be designed to pass certain frequency bands from PC to infinity, digital filters do not enjoy this luxury. All frequencies are normalized to the sampling frequency F_S , which is taken to be 1 (or π) in the digital domain and frequencies normalized to F_S are known as digital frequencies. Due to spectral folding in a sampled system, the input to a digital filter must not have any significant spectral components beyond $F_S/2$. Otherwise, the original signal cannot be recovered without distortion (the sampling theorem). Therefore, the analog input to an A/D converter must be band limited by an anti-aliasing filter.

There are, in general, two classes of digital filters:

1. Infinite impulse response (IIR) filters in which the impulse response of the filter is infinitely long, and



Figure 24 - SSB Receive Algorithm

10.0 miles

State State



- Balling & San



Figure 25 - SSB Receive Spectra

- 39 -

2. Finite impulse response (FIR) filters, which have finite time impulse responses and can be obtained by truncating the infinite impulse response samples.

Analog filters such as Butterworth, Chebyshev, and Elliptic filters which have polynomials both in the denominator and numerator in the transfer function in the S plane belong to the first class. Their digital filter counterparts which have the same kind of frequency response, can be obtained by using a bilinear transformation. The results are excellent using this method. However, the implementation is recursive, i.e., the output samples are dependent on the present input samples as well as the previous output samples and care must be taken that limit cycles do not occur*. Phasewise, the IIR filter response is extremely nonlinear. A second order section of an IIR filter is shown in figure 26. The letters a, b, c, d, in the figure are the coefficients for the second order polynomial.

To alleviate the problem of limit cycles and phase non-linearities, the FIR approach can be taken. To generate a FIR filter, the impulse response of a certain filter with the desired characteristic is obtained. (These may be the truncated impulse responses from IIR filters). A convolution between the impulse response of the filter and the input samples to the filter will produce the desired output. FIR filters have exactly linear phase and since a convolution is a sum of product computation, the absence of input will produce no output. Hence, there is no limit cycle. There are many ways in which FIR filters can be designed (besides truncating the IIR filter impulse response) such as the use of various windows, the frequency sampling technique, etc. A design technique which is widely accepted in recent years to yield an optimum (minimax error) FIR filter is known as the Remez Exchange algorithm. It proved to be the best of the various design techniques listed in Appendix B. In general, IIR filters are more efficient than the FIR filters when the order of the filter is large. However, since FIR filters have exactly linear phase, i.e., there is no group delay distortion, FIR filters are chosen for the NBSCU.

The Remez Exchange algorithm is implemented using the CDC 6600 to obtain the filter coefficients which are listed in tables 6 through 11.

The frequency response using these coefficients are then obtained using an interpolation formula implemented on a Tektronix 4051 terminal. The output samples are plotted and shown in figure 27 through figure 32 (with 2 db/division vertical scale). The response with the coefficients rounded off to 12 bits are shown in figure 33 through figure 38. Notice that in all cases, the attenuation in the stopband is at least 50 db down with respect to passband amplitude.

*Limit cycle is an effect due to the dependence on previous output samples. The filter produces an output sample with no input.



- 41 -

NADC-	-791	53-40

TABLE 6 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 10 STAGE 1:2 DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANEPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 10

FILTER LENGTH DETERMINED BY APPROXIMATION

The share and the second second

A State State State

LAPOLSE RESPUNSE ALLA	-		IMPL	ILSE	RESP	ONSE		
-----------------------	---	--	------	------	------	------	--	--

	P C	1)	=	1	363	402	21 E	-0:	=	HI	10)
		21									
	п	21	-	4	030	805	255	-63	=	HC	9)
	HC	3)	=	1	424	319	94E	-02	2 =	HC	8)
	HC	41	=	.1	781	892	3E	+00	=	HC	7)
	HE	5)	=	. 3	792	131	8 E	+00	=	HC	6)
		BA	ND	1			84	NC	2		BAND
LOWER BAND EDGE		000	000	000		. 3	61	000	00	0	
JPPER BAND EDGE		114	500	000		.5	00	000	00	0	
DESIREC VALUE	1.	000	000	000			0.0	000	0.00	n	
WEIGHTING	1.	000	003	000	10	0.0	00	000	0.01	1	
DEVIATION		850	793	100		. 3	00	287	93	•	
DEVIATION TN DA		500	125	660	- 7	0 0	41	274			

EXTREMAL FREQUENCIES

.0687500 .1146000 .3610000 .3735000 .4172500 .4735000



TABLE 7 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 10 STAGE 1:4 DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMFULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANCPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 10

FILTER LENGTH DETERMINED BY APPROXIMATION

.....

and have a

			IMPULSE	RESPONS	E		
HC	1)	=	.82334	641E-02	=	HC	10)

4(2)	=	.34954963E-01	=	HC	9)
HC	3)	=	·84412599E-01	=	HC	8)
HC	4)	=	.14330758E+00	=	HC	7)
+(5)	=	.18419784E+0C	=	HC	6)

	BAND 1	BAND 2	BAND
LOWER BANC EDGE	.0000000000	.241000000	A REAL PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF
UPPER BAND EDGE	.007200000	.500000000	
DESIRED VALUE	1.000000000	.00000000	
WEIGHTING	1.000000000	100.000000000	
DEVIATION	.092834110	.000928341	
DEVIATION IN DP	1.617350604	-62.645848397	

EXTREMAL FREQUENCIES .0072000 .2410000 .2597500 .3097500 .3847500 .4597500

TABLE 8 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 25 STAGE 1:4 DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANDPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 25

			. IMPULSE RESPONSE
	HC	1) =	21100766E-03 = H(25)
	HC	2) =	=39009108E-03 = H(24)
	HE	3) =	=28928785E-C2 = H(23)
	HC	4) =	83599938E-02 = H(22)
	HC	5) =	=16027747E-01 = H(21)
	HC	6) =	=22021152E-01 = H(20)
	HC	7) =	=19541314E-01 = H(19)
	HC	81 =	=13701737E-02 = H(18)
	HC	9) =	35973699E-01 = H(17)
	HC	10) =	88589167E-01 = H(16)
	HC	11) =	= .14458815E+00 = H(15)
	H	12) =	18771701E+00 = H(14)
	HC	13) =	= .2039388CE+00 = H(13)
		BAND	D 1 BAND 2 BAND
I OWED BAND EDGE		00000	18000 180600000

LOWER BAND EDGE	.000000000	.180600000	
UPPER BAND EDGE	.057300000	.50000000	
DESIRED VALUE	1.000000000	.000000000	
WEIGHTING	1.000000000	100.00000000	
DEVIATION	.023109854	.000231099	
DEVIATION IN DB	.401530770	-72.724056063	

EXTREMAL FREQUENCIES

.00000000	.0384615	.0573000	.1896000	.1878115
.2070423	.2358885	.2695423	.3056000	.3440615
.3825231	.4 20 9846	.4594462	.5000000	

TABLE 9 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 55 STAGE 1:1 DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANDPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 55

				IMPUL	.SE	RE	SPO	NSE	Ξ.			
	HC	1)	=	.96	595	225	9E-	03	=	HC	55)	
	HC	2)	=	.10	162	665	8E-	02	=	HC	54)	
	HC	3)	=	27	98	0 04	2E-	02	=	HC	53)	
and the second	HC	4)	=	80	132	977	8E-	C2	=	HC	52)	
	HE	5)	=	62	297	514	OE-	02	=	HC	51)	
	HC	6)	=	.22	99	018	3F-	02	=	HC	50)	
	HE	71	=	- 47	705	1 96	9F-	02	=	HE	49)	
	HE	81	=	36	53R	348	7F-	02	=	HI	48)	
	HC	9)	=	67	92	0 77	OF-	02	=	HE	471	
	HE	1 0)	=	.30	921	997	2F-	02	=	HC	461	
	He	111	=	. 90	70	677	LE-	02	=	н	451	
	HE	121	=	44	36	847	LE-	02	=	HI	44)	
	Hr	1 31	-	- 12	220	603	36-	61	-	HI	431	
	HE	141	-	- 41	79	403	1 E-	02	-	HI	431	
	He	151	-	. 16	27	1 82	TE-	01	-		441	
	HI	161	-	- 52	201	646	OF-	01			411	
		1 7)	-	- 24	60	168	SE-	D4	-		301	
	HI	1 81	-		56.8	900	05-	02	-	5	391	
		107	-	• 20	177	701	02-	02	-		301	
		190	-	- 50	222	374	0C-	01	-		3/1	
		201	-	23	120	204	46-	02	-		301	
		211	-	40	170	424	00-	01	-	H	371	
		221	-	• 0 4	109	910	UE-	50	=	MC	341	
		231	-	.00	100	001	DE-	01	=	MI	201	
		241		00	04	4 00	25-	02	-		321	
	H	251	=	10	139	208	BE+	00	=	нс	311	
		201	=	.04	195	040	CE-	02	=	HC	301	
	H	211			175	101	52+	00	=	HI	291	
	H	28)	=	• 4 9	934	630	9E+	CO	=	нс	281	
								-	-			
		BA	NU	1			BAN	0	2			BANU
LOWER BAND EDGE		.000	000	000		•2	180	000	100			
UPPER BAND EUGE		.229	200	000		• 5	090	000	100			
DESIRED VALUE	1		000	000		• 0	000	000				
WEIGHIING	1	.000	000	000	10	0.0	000	000	100			
DEVIATION		.025	721	650	-	•0	002	572	216	,		
DEVIATION IN DB		• 4 4 6	929	404	-7	1.7	940	235	574	•		
EXTREMAL FREQUEN	CIES											
	.021	2054		.042	41	07		.08	:36	161		.0848214
.1049107	.125	0000		.146	20	54		.16	652	946		.1 85 26 79
.205 3571	.220	9821		.229	120	00		.27	80	000		.2813482
.2891607	.301	4375		-314	+83	04		. 33	504	554		.3460804
.3617054	.378	4464		.396	530	36		•41	.30	446		.4297857
•4476429	.465	5000		.482	224	11		.50	100	000		

TABLE 10 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 16 STAGE 1:4 (SSB) DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANDPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 16

		IMP	ULSE RESI	ONSE	
	H(11	=	927340921	E-03 = H(16)
	HC 21	=	12691651	-02 = H(15)
	HC 31	= .	33726088	1H = 50-3	14)
	H(41	= .	20226966	E-01 = H(13)
	H(51	= .	5450 86161	-01 = HI	12)
	HC 61	= .	103251786	1H = 00+	11)
	HC 71	= .	152928691	1H = 30+3	10)
	H(81	= .	18463465	E+00 = H(9)
	8/	ND 1	BA	ND Z	BAND
LOWER BAND EDGE	.000	0000000	-21	5300000	and the second design of the second se
UPPER BAND EDGE	.028	700000	.500	000000	
DESTRED VALUE	1.000	0000000	.000	000000	
WEIGHTING	1.000	000000	100.000	000000	
DEVIATION	.033	453619	.000	334536	
DEVIATION IN DB	.581	365829	-69.511	137847	
EXTREMAL FREQUEN	ICTES				
.0000000	.0 287000	-2	1 53000	. 2270188	2621750
.3051437	.3598312	.4:	145187	.4692062	ecocit su

to sense . Another and the set of the set of

TABLE 11 - IMPULSE RESPONSE FOR 16 STAGE 1:4 DIGITAL FILTER

FINITE IMPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM

BANDPASS FILTER

FILTER LENGTH = 16

	• • • • •	IMPULSE RESPONSE	•
	H(1) =	27836378E-03 = H(16)
	H(2) =	.19176790E-03 = H(15)
	H(3) =	.51380971E-02 = H(14)
	H(4) =	.21038964E-01 = H(13)
	H(5) =	.53192579E-01 = H(12)
	H(6) =	.99517446E-01 = H(11)
	H(7) =	.14739916E+00 = H(10)
	H(8) =	.17825397E+00 = H(9)
	BANO	1 BAND 2	BAND
OWER BAND EDGE	.00000.	.232600000	
UPPER BAND EDGE	.01430	.50000000	
DESIRED VALUE	1.00000	.0000000000	
WEIGHTING	1.00000	0000 100.000000000	
DEVIATION	.00890	.000089072	
DEVIATION IN DB	.15473	8637 -81.005140433	

.0000000	.0143000	-2326000	.2443187	.2716625
.3146312	.3615062	.4161937	.4708812	



- 48 -



- 49 -



1

- 50 -





a. W. S.



- 52 -



The second second

- 53 -





- 55 -









4.2 Macro Instructions

A macro-instruction is a set of ones and zeroes that instructs the machine on processing tasks to be performed. From the algorithm, it can be seen that the filtering process is the most important task that the NBSCU has to perform. There are several pieces of information that have to be supplied to the machine for the filtering operation. These include the following:

- a. Starting Address The machine has to be instructed as to where to fetch the coefficients for convolution.
- b. Ending Address (or number of coefficients) The machine has to know when the convolution ends so it can stop. The two specifications (ending address, or number of coefficients) are equivalent. However, due to ease of implementation, one specification may be preferred to the other.
- c. Resampling Rate The machine has to know how often the samples are to be processed. For a 4:1 filter, since only every fourth sample is needed, the other three output samples may not be computed. This will represent a significant reduction in loading.

Based on the requirements on the filtering operation, a macro-instruction format is obtained and is shown in figure 39.

It is broken into 6 sub-fields with the following bit assignments:

- Bit Assigned Function
- 0 This is the bit that determines whether a single channel (0) algorithm (as in AM transmit) or a double channel (1) algorithm (as in AM receive) is used.
- 1 This bit determines the rate at which the memory counters count. For a dual channel operation, the rate is half of that of a single channel operation because two multiplications are required.
- 2 This bit is reserved for single sideband transmit mode.
- 3 This bit represents a frequency translation process occurring after a filtering process.
- 4-13 These ten bits represent the starting address for the filter coefficients.
- 14-23 These ten bits specify the final location for the filter coefficient.

- 60 -



- 61 -

- 24-31 These are the bits that specify the resampling rate and are defined as follows:
 - (a) If the sample rate remains unchanged a filter resampling specification of 11 is used.
 - (b) If the sample rate increases after filtering (e.g., four times the rate) a specification of 14 is used.
 - (c) If the sample rate decreases after filtering (e.g., one fourth the rate) a specification of 41 is used.

In all the above cases, the first digit is represented by the first four bits in the field while the second digit is represented by the last four bits in the field.

32-35 These four bits represent the function to be performed after the present stage of filtering and appropriately conditions the bits for use in the next stage of operation. These bits are defined as follows:

- 0000 This code calls for the arctangent demodulation routine in the AM case.
- 0001 This code calls for the arctangent demodulation routine in the FM case.
- 0101 This is the frequency translation routine.
- 0100 This is used for pre-emphasis filtering and frequency translation that may be incorporated into the algorithm later on.
- 1000 This is for de-emphasis filtering and will be using in conjunction with the pre-emphasis filter.
- 1100 This is for AM transmit in which a carrier is added to the waveform as well as frequency translation.
- 1111 This is used for consecutive filtering process.

Therefore, if a 16 stage filter is to be used in a single channel mode with the starting address in the coefficient listing located at address 10, and assuming a 1:1 resampling rate, the following macrocode can be obtained for this process.

001100000010010000010101000100011111

4.3 The Arctangent Demodulator

The Arctangent algorithm is a fast and efficient algorithm to determine the phase and amplitude of a complex number. The process is essentially a

- 62 -

rectangular to polar coordinate conversion process. Given a complex number, which can be represented by the vector diagram in figure 40, the amplitude can be obtained by using the equation

 $A = R \cos \theta + Q \sin \theta$.

The angle θ is given by:

 $\theta = \tan^{-1} \frac{Q}{R}$

Notice that regardless of the angle θ , the amplitude is always positive. This is equivalent to the diode detector output of an AM demodulator which is always positive. Only two multiplications and one addition are required to obtain the amplitude provided that the phase is known. It is, therefore, obvious that as far as the demodulation process goes, phase demodulation is the most efficient, if the Arctangent Demodulator is to be used.

Obtaining the absolute phase angle of the vector is a little difficult because it involves a division process as well as an arctangent process. Straight implementation of the division process and the series method of obtaining the arctangent of a number is very inefficient and involves many multiplications. These two methods are therefore abandoned. A more efficient way to implement the two functions is by means of table look up. By putting two tables (1/X, arctangent) on read only memories (ROMS), the phase angle can be obtained by merely one multiplication. Therefore, four tables, as seen from the equation, are required for the Arctangent Demodulator for both amplitude and phase computation. These are the 1/X, tan⁻¹, sine and cosine tables. Since the sine and cosine can be obtained from one another, one table can be eliminated. Furthermore, since the value of the sine and cosine function are unique up to 90°, the required sine table will be one fourth of the full sine table. To reduce the size of the arctangent table, the magnitude of the two vector components can be obtained and compared. The larger of the two vectors can be used to address the 1/X table. Multiplication of the table output and the smaller vector will produce a number that is less than 1, corresponding to 45°. Therefore, a tan⁻¹ table ranging from 0 to 45° is all that is required. The procedure for obtaining the phase, and amplitude is as follows:

- 1. Obtain magnitude of vectors and store original signs of vectors.
- 2. Compare the two numbers and use the larger of the two to address the 1/X table.
- 3. Multiply the output of the 1/X table with the smaller number to form the product |Y|/|X|.
- 4. Use the product to address the arctangent ROM to obtain the angle in the first octant.

For getting the magnitude of the vector, the angle can be put into the proper quadrant and the corresponding values of the sine and cosine of the

- 63 -

70153



angle in the first quadrant are obtained from the sine table. The amplitude is equal to R $\cos \theta + Q \sin \theta$. Since the amplitude is always positive, and also $\cos \theta$ and $\sin \theta$ is positive in the first quadrant, the following equation can be used without affecting the result.

 $/R/\cos\theta + /Q/\sin\theta$

where $0^{\circ} \leq \theta \leq 90^{\circ}$ and is the angle that has the same absolute sine and cosine value as the original angle. The absolute phase angle can then be determined by using table 12. Notice that the angle ranges from +180° to -180° because bipolar 2's complement arithmetic is used.

TABLE 12 - PHASE DETERMINATION OF ARCTANGENT DEMODULATOR

R	<u>Q</u>	$ \mathbf{R} - \mathbf{Q} $	Octant	Absolute Angle
+	+	+	1	$Tan^{-1} Q / R $
+	+		2	$90^{\circ} - Tan^{-1} R / Q $
-	+	aulan d e lemente	3	$90^{\circ} + Tan^{-1} R / Q $
-	+	+	4	180° - Tan ⁻¹ Q / R
-	-	• • • + • • •	5	$-180^{\circ} + Tan^{-1} Q / R $
-	-		6	$-90^{\circ} - Tan^{-1} R / Q $
+		Adjoingster dat bes	7	$-90^{\circ} + Tan^{-1} R / Q $
+	-	+	8	-Tan-1 Q / R

NBSCU Design Requirements

Two of the most important functions that the narrowband signal conversion unit has to perform is that of filtering and demodulation. Since the unit has to handle FM signals which are very phase sensitive, non-recursive finite impulse response (FIR) filters were chosen over infinite impulse response (IIR) filters. In the FM and SSB mode, notice that the output of one filter is the input to another filter, and therefore, the filtering circuits must have the capability to loop the output back to the input of the filter to be reprocessed. Furthermore, since the filters are performing the resampling and desampling functions, this imposes a condition on the input and output buffer size. The maximum requirement occurs in the single sideband receive and transmit mode in which 32 input samples are required to produce one output sample. Thus, the buffers used must be at least 32 words in length. A clock generator is also required to supply the required clocks to the A/D and D/A converters. A multiplier, which is the most important element in digital filtering, must be capable of operating fast enough to do the required number of multiplications in real time. The various functions that are to be performed should be microprocessor controlled. In the event that the microprocessor fails, it is desirable that a standby function can be loaded manually by the operator. This is also one of the redundant features in the TIES program.

5. NBSCU CIRCUIT DESIGN

Circuits were designed based on the functions that the narrowband signal conversion unit has to perform and can be separated into two categories — analog and digital. A top level block diagram for the narrowband signal conversion unit is shown in figure 41.

Discussions on the analog and digital circuits are given in the following sections.

5.1 Analog Interface Circuits

The analog circuits serve as the interface between the analog world and the signal processor. The interface consists of a sample-and-hold circuit, an A/D converter at the input and D/A converter at the output. A circuit that generates the sampling rate suitable for conversion is also part of the analog interface circuit which is shown in figure 42. All circuit components are commercially available hardware.

Upon command from the sampling rate generator, the input signal to the sample-and-hold circuit is sampled. The sampled value is then held by a capicitor. The A/D convertor will produce a 10 bit word in two's complement notation. The sampling rate generator is simply a programmable divide-by-N circuit that takes in a frequency of 230.4 KHz and produce a sub-multiple of this frequency. Depending on whether the transmit or receive mode is used, the higher or lower frequency is routed appropriately to the A/D or D/A converter. Notice that no phase lock loop is required to generate the sampling frequencies because the resampling and desampling filters are multiples or reciprocals of the input sampling rate.

5.2 Digital Circuits

A detailed block diagram for the NBSCU is shown in figure 43.

The digital circuit can be partitioned into two parts — the loading circuits used to load the filter coefficients from mass storage memory into the memory of the signal processor and the circuits that process the input samples.

5.2.1 Loading Circuits

The loading circuit is shown in figure 44. The operation of this circuit is described as follows:

Toggle switch, SO1, in the open position, enables EPROMS 1 and 2 and the B inputs to MU1. By depressing the preset switch SO2, the appropriate flipflops and counters are preset. Depressing switch SO3 causes DO101 to change state, thereby turning the master clock on at AO20103. The clock then goes through a counter which has outputs that are sub-multiples of the basic clock rate. This is necessary because the EPROMS have a cycle time that is much longer than the 200 nsec master clock period. Using the divide by 16 output



and the second second



the second second second

Thur .

NADC-79153-40


a second and the second second as a

- 68 -



- 69 -



derine burnes

: 11

(Inny)

1.1 --- 3

4

e

1.1

NADC-79153-40

Figure 44 - NBSCU Parameter Loading Circuit

5

the fire is

0200

in the

0

6

6

er-1 1 ÷

Q: 0

State of the second sec

(

as the clock to the EPROM address counter, the contents of the first location (which consists of the number of stages of filtering involved in the mod/demo process) is loaded into flip-flops D04, D05 while the content of location 2 (which contains the required number of constants and coefficients) is loaded into flip-flops D06, D07. The 36 bit macro instructions, each of which occupy 5 locations in the EPROM are loaded into the instruction RAMs which are addressed by counters B05, B06. Comparators C04, C05, which compare the number of stages required for the mod/demod process and the counter outputs, produce a signal when all the macro instructions are loaded into the instruction RAMs. The coefficient RAMs then begin to fill up. The addressing device in this case is a set of arithmetic logic units because of the resampling requirement which will be seen later on. Upon completion, comparators C01, C02, C03 produce a signal that changes the state of flip-flop D0201, which turns a LED on indicating that the processor is loaded.

5.2.2 Signal Processor Circuits

Upon completion of the loading process, the signal processor is left in the idle state. It will remain in the idle state until enough samples required for processing are gathered. The number of samples required can be determined by the overall resampling rate. The circuit for buffer loading is shown in figure 45.

When the required samples are acquired, a signal is produced at 0240308 and shaped by the one shot circuit MX02 which produces a 30 nsec pulse that changes the state of D0802 which turns 00401 on. The signal processor now becomes active with the master clock turned on at 0040103. Three reset pulses are produced and designated RESET 1, RESET 2, RESET 3. RESET 1 is used to reset devices that need to be reset after all the input samples are processed. RESET 2 is used to reset devices that need to be reset after each filtering process. RESET 3 is used to reset devices that need to be reset after each convolution.

After the proper devices are reset by the three reset pulses, the input data, which are being held by the input buffer begins the transfer to the high speed RAMs. The data transfer is complicated due to the resampling process. The circuit is shown in figure 46.

Inputs to comparators COl and CO2 will be coming from the macro instruction RAMs representing the resampling rate used for the particular filter. Since a resampling filter of 4:1 requires the processing of 1 sample out of 4 input samples, four samples are loaded into the high speed RAMs. However, the convolution process only takes place after the fourth sample is loaded. On the other hand, if a 1:4 filtering function is to be performed all input samples are used (including the zeroes used for zero filling). Therefore, the inputs to comparator CO1 determine the overall samples required to produce one sample. However, the input to the comparator CO2 does not represent the number of zeroes to be filled. Instead, the number of zeroes needed is one less than the input to comparator CO2. Provision is made so that the state of the counter BO1 can be stored in memory RO5 in case not





- 73 -

- 60 -

enough samples are available for processing. When enough samples are loaded in the high speed RAMs for one convolution, a signal from comparator CO1 will turn on the clock to the convolutional filter at 0220102.

Notice that enough samples must be loaded into the high speed RAMs for convolution to begin. The processor will go to the next macro instruction if the samples are insufficient, i.e., the program counters B05, B06 will increment when this condition occurs even no convolution takes place. This operation is controlled by the circuit shown on figure 47.

The high speed RAMs are addressed by counters B09, B10, B11, which are loaded with an initial address for the particular filter and increment each time new data is deposited onto the RAMs. Decrementation begins when actual convolution takes place. The address at which the counters stop counting is stored in RAMs R01, R02, R03 because these data have to be retrieved for processing the next set of data. This is shown in figure 48.

Since each time a new sample is loaded into the high speed RAM, the address counters increment by one to get ready for the next input, these counters have to be decremented by one when convolution occurs. For a particular filter operation, the beginning and ending addresses for the coefficients are used and the circuit must have the capability to reset the counter to the starting address during the loading process and must be able to reset to the ending address during the convolution process. This is accomplished by enabling the A input of multiplexers M29, M30, M31 to detect the condition that the ending address is reached. The M24, M25, M26, M27, M28 multiplexers are then enabled so that the beginning address lines are used for loading into counters B09, B10, B11. At the beginning of the filtering function, the previous address is loaded into the counters by RESET 3 from RAMS R01, R02, R03. Convolution begins upon completion of the loading process.

The circuit for the convolution process is shown in figure 49.

Two shift registers SO1, SO2 are used for controlling the timing requirements for the two multipliers, the ALUs and the ALU output registers. SOl is for the real channel while SO2 is for the quad channel in the two channel operating mode. Data from the two channels are alternately loaded into the input registers of the multiplier while outputs of the ALUs are loaded appropriately into the corresponding accumulator registers. In the single channel operating mode, the multiplier circuitry is the same as in the dual channel mode. However, data now comes from one channel at all times and only one accumulator register is activated. To operate the circuit at the most efficient rate, the address counters B09, B10, B11 have to be clocked at twice the rate so that the two multipliers can operate at the same rate as in the two channel case. This is accomplished by flip-flops D2502 upon command from the instruction RAM. Notice that in both the single and dual channel cases after the last data word is loaded into the multiplier, three clock pulses are required before data is available from the multiplier. This is taken care of by counter B2O. Signals coming out of counter B2O will trigger the state of flip-flop D1101 to change indicating that convolution is completed.



- 75 -





Figure 40 - Real and Quad Components of a Complex Number

- 64 -

NADC-79153-40

The control circuits for the high speed RAMs, the multipliers, the ALUs and associated registers are shown in figures 50 through 55.

Depending on the process to be performed after filtering, the data stored in the accumulator registers have to be conditioned. This can be done quite easily by a set of shift registers. This is shown in figure 56.

The change in state of flip-flop DllOl enables the 1 of 16 decoder to which the last four bits of the macro-instruction are wired. The 1 of 16 decoder, when enabled, activates the proper set of shift registers. As the zero logic level propagates down the shift register the corresponding functions are accomplished. During these processes, the operation of the multipliers, the ALUs, as well as the accumulator registers may have to be activated again. The control signals for these functions can be found in figures 50, 52, 54, respectively.

The various tasks to be performed after filtering are as follows:

a. Filtering

This is shown in figure 57 and gives the capability to the processor to perform cascade filter operation. The data are not changed and are loaded back into the real and quad RAMs appropriately. To simplify circuit design, both real and quad accumulators are used even in the single channel mode in which only one register is used.

b. AM Transmit - Modulation

After the last stage of filtering in the AM transmit mode, a carrier is added to the filter output sample and the resulting signal is mixed up to 57.6 KHz for transmission. This circuit has to add to the accumulator register a constant representing the carrier and multiplying the resulting output by 1,0,-1,0,..., - the four samples of a sinusoidal wave for frequency translation. Since the ALUs can perform a negation function, no multiplication is actually carried out. Furthermore, since multiplication by zero produces a zero output, only every other output sample is required to be computed. Therefore, for this particular process, the filter preceding the carrier addition process can be set to be a 2:4 filter. This will reduce the overall number of multiplication required for the process. Notice that the specification is 2:4 and not 1:2. A 2:4 specification indicates that 2 samples are required to produce 1 output sample and that three out of four input samples are zeroes, which is what the normal input would be if a 1:4 resampling were to be done. A 1:2 specification will produce one output sample for every input sample which has zero value at every other sample. This is incorporated into the circuit shown in figure 57.

c. AM Receive - Demodulation

The circuit diagram for this case is shown in figure 58.





Figure 51 - Control Circuit for Multipliers

- 80 -

÷









States -

- 83 -





Figure 56 - Reprocessing Scheme for Filtered Data



· Contraction



The function of this circuit is to obtain the amplitude of a vector given in rectangular coordinates and in the arctangent process described earlier. Notice that the absolute angle is not computed since the amplitude is always positive.

d. FM Transmit - Modulation

The circuit for FM modulation is shown in figure 59.

The output of the 1:4 filter is integrated to give a phase representation of the incoming signal which is used to address a sine/cosine table to produce the sine and cosine value of the angle. The frequency translation process is obtained by changing the signs of these numbers according to the FM transmit algorithm.

e. FM Receive - Demodulation

The circuit for the FM receive demodulation process is incorporated in figure 58. This is the same arctangent process used in the AM case. In the case for FM, the absolute phase is computed and is to be differentiated to obtain the frequency of the signal. f. SSB Transmit and Receive

Following the last stage of filtering in the single sideband receive or transmit mode, a frequency translation can be seen from the algorithm. This is similar to the FM transmit case in which only every other sample from the two channels are needed to produce the result. This is incorporated into figure 57. The frequency translation in this case is equivalent to multiplying the data by +1, +1, -1, -1, etc.

Notice that the coefficient and constant RAMs which are normally addressed by the ALUs have to be addressed differently depending on which constant is required during the demodulation process. This circuit diagram is shown in figure 60 which is also the control logic for addressing the RAM in the loading diagram.

After processing one set of samples, the resulting output can be D/A converted back into an analog signal or the data can be put back into memory for further filtering. For reasons of simplicity in control circuitry, two sets of RAMs are needed. While the contents of one set of RAMs are used as inputs to the processor, the other set stores the processed output. The roles are reversed between the two sets of RAMs after processing one set of data. To accommodate the dual channel case, therefore, four sets of RAMs are used. However, the address counters remain as two sets. To eliminate the time required for transferring the input samples to these RAMs, the input buffer is chosen to be the other set of the same RAM. By ping ponging this set of RAMs with one of the two sets of RAMs in the real channel, data transfer can be accomplished readily. The control circuits can be seen on figure 45 and the input/output wiring can be seen on figure 61.





a state and a series

Con-



- 90 -



and the light

NADC-79153-40

HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS

To implement the circuits in the design, high speed ICs have to be used because of the real time requirement. Among the different processes involved, multiplication is most critical and time consuming. The two candidates that give adequate multiplication performance will be the AMD 25S05 multiplier and also the TRW SJ series multiplier. The AMD device has a very slight edge over the TRW multiplier in speed. However, the AMD device only comes as a 2×4 bit package and would involve eighteen 24-pin ICs plus 5 high speed carry look ahead ICs to realize a 12 bit by 12 bit multiplier. Because of the real estate involved, the AMD device was abandoned. The TRW device is an LSI device with 64 pins and can perform multiplication at a rate of 175 nsec, and draws a maximum of 850 ma equivalent to 4.25 watts at 5 volts.

All ALUs are Schottky ICs. For a 24 bit addition, with high speed carry look ahead circuits, the addition time is only 19 nsec and presents no problem of loading the circuit down.

The overall constraint on slowing the operating speed comes from the address counters B09, B10, B11 as well as the RAMs. This is especially true in the single channel mode in which the counters are to be incremented at twice the dual channel mode. The worst propagation delay for a programmable up/down counter is 36 nsec, while the address access time for the RAMs is 30 nsec, making a total of 138 nsec. This is equivalent to a clock rate of about 7 MHz. To operate at this rate, two multipliers are required. This will give a safety margin as well as the capability for expansion in the future. A CARL . THE CONTRACT OF A CARL

6. NBSCU Specifications

The following are specifications for major components needed as well as various design parameters based on the present NBSCU design.

6.1 SAMPLE AND HOLD

Manufacturer: DATEL Model No.: SHM-UH Input Range: ±5V FS Input Impedance: 100 Megohms shunted with 20 pf. Sample command: 35 ± 10 nsec 0 to 5 volts positive pulse 3 nsec max. rise and fall time

Sample command Input Impedance: 50 ohms - requires 100 ma of source current

Output Voltage Range: ±5V FS Output Current: ±30 ma max. Output Impedance: 10 ohms, max. Acquisition Time: 35 nsec for full scale input Aperture Time: 200 psec. Output Slewing Rate: 500V/µsec Maximum Sample Rate: 10 MHz Hold Decay Rate: 50 µV/µsec

6.2 A/D Converter

Manufacturer: DATEL Model Number: ADC-G3C Output Coding: 2's complement (reverse coding) No. of Bits: 10 Analog Input Range: ±5 volts Input Impedance: 2KΩ Start Conversion: 2V min. to 7V max. positive pulse. 30 nsec min. width "1" = Resets "0" = Starts Conversion

End of Conversion Output: 0 = Conversion complete 1 = Reset and Conversion Period

Conversion Rate: 1 MHz

6.3 D/A Converter

Manufacturer: DATEL

Model No.: DAC-VR 12B3C

Input Coding: 2's complement





Input Loading: 1 TTL load

Data Strobe: Information must be present at the register inputs of the D/A converter prior to strobing. Transfer of information to the output pins occurs when the strobe input goes from 1 to 0.

いいたいのないのであってい

Update Rate: 10 MHz max.

Output Voltage: ±5 volts

Output Settling Time: <2 µsec to ± 0.025% of FS

6.4 Processor

Input Buffer Size: 256, 12 bit words

Scratch pad memory size: 1,024, 12 bit words

Macroinstruction memory size: Sixteen 36 bit words

Multiplication Rate: 10 MHz

Addition Rate: 50 MHz

Maximum Sampling Rate: 5 KHz - 500 KHz

No. of IC's used: 360

Power Supply: 5 volt, -12 volts

Current drawn: 20 amperes at 5 volt 70 ma at -12 volts

Output Buffer Size: 64, 12 bit words (FIFOs)

No. of Circuit Boards: One 19" x 8" Multiplier - ALU Board One 19" x 8" Memory Board One 10" x 10" I/O and Control Board One 8" x 8" Analog-Digital Conversion Board These boards are shown in figure 62.

- 94 -

NADC-79153-40 (B) MULTIPLER-ALU BOARD
 ROL BOARD
 (D) MEMORY BOARD

 Figure 62 - Circuit Boards for TIES NBSCU
0 0 Amp ----28 0 TIES NBSCU (NADC) 1. 29 010 30 3 (A) ANALOG-DIGITAL CONVERSION BOARD (C) 1/O AND CONTROL BOARD 31 32 33 34 35 0 3 0 D. LIDO O ł 0 - 95 -

APPENDIX A

NOISE SOURCES

In the course of digital processing of signals, there are many places that noise may be introduced that may affect the quality of the signal. In the following paragraphs, some of these noise sources are investigated.

A.1 Noise Sources from a Sampling Process

The quality of the signal begins to deteriorate the moment it is sampled — assuming sampling is high enough in frequency so that there is no aliasing effect. The first group of noise sources come from the sample-andhold circuit which freezes the fast moving signal for the A/D converter to make the conversion. Those noise sources are listed below:

- OFFSET This is the extent to which the output deviates from zero with zero input and is usually a function of time and temperature and can be adjusted.
- 2) NONLINEARITY This is the amount by which the output versus input deviates from a straight line.
- 3) SCALE FACTOR ERROR This is the amount by which the output deviates from specified gain (usually unity). This parameter can also be adjusted.
- 4) APERTURE UNCERTAINTY This is the time elapsed between the command to hold and the actual opening of the hold switch.
- 5) DROOP This is the drift of the output caused by the discharge of the storage capacitor.

Among the above noise sources from the sample-and-hold, the most important ones are the aperture uncertainty and the droop.

The aperture uncertainty has two components — a nominal time delay, and an uncertainty caused by jitter or variation from time to time and unit to unit and is shown in figure Al.

The aperture uncertainty of a sample-and-hold unit dictates the rate that the input signal can vary given that the signal is to be resolved to a certain desired minimum value as in the case of an A/D converter. Assuming that a signal of the form A sin ω t is sampled by a sample-and-hold circuit. The rate at which the signal varies with time will be the time derivative of the signal and is given by the following equation:

 $\frac{d}{dt}$ A sin $\omega t = \omega A \cos \omega t$ volts/sec

If an A/D converter is to be used to put the sampled value into 10 binary bits, the aperture error should not cause the output to vary more than 1/2 LSB. Assuming the A/D converter has 1 volt as its full scale, therefore 1/2 LSB = 2-11 volts. The maximum rate at which the input signal can vary is ωA volts/sec, and therefore, the maximum aperture error is $2^{-11}/\omega A$ seconds. Therefore, to specify the aperture error, one must know the weight of the LSB of the A/D converter and the strength of the incoming signal. Notice that if ωA becomes larger indicating that the frequency is larger (A is a constant), a smaller aperture uncertainty is required.

As aperture time is important to fast moving signals, the droop is important to slow moving waveforms. A typical diagram for the droop is shown in figure A2 and is the effect caused by the discharge of the capacitor in the hold circuit. Since slow moving signals imply a slower sampling rate, the capacitor will have more time to discharge than in higher rate sampling circuits. Therefore, given the LSB for the A/D converter using in conjunction with the sample-and-hold with a certain droop, the minimum sampling rate can be determined. For example, assume a sample and hold has a droop rate of $50 \mu v/\mu sec$ and a 1 volt full scale 10 bit A/D converter has 2^{-11} volt as the weight of half its LSB. The minimum sampling rate should be:

 $f = [(2^{-11} \text{ volt})(1 \text{ sec}/50 \text{ volt})]^{-1} = 102.4 \text{ KHz}$

Sampling less than 102.4 KHz may yield an erroneous result at the output of the A/D converter.

the state of the s

The source of error coming from the A/D converter is known as quantization noise. The noise arises because of the fact that only a finite number of bits are used to represent an analog voltage. This is known as truncation error, or roundoff error depending on the scheme used to obtain the fixed binary number.

For two's complement representation, the error ET for truncation was found to be $0 \ge E_T > -2^{-b}$. Rounding off a two's complement number will produce an error given by the following expression:

 $-(1/2)(2^{-b}) < E_R \leq (1/2)(2^{-b})$

The mean and variance of the quantization noise are shown to be

me = 0

$$\sigma_{a}^{2} = \Delta^{2}/12 = 2^{-2b}/12$$

for rounding and

$$m_e = -2^{-b}/2$$

 $\sigma_e^2 = 2^{-2b}/12$

for two's complement truncation.

If we assume that the signal power to the A/D converter is σ_x^2 , then the signal to noise ratio produced by the quantization will be $\sigma_x^2/\sigma_e^2 = (12/2^{-2b})\sigma_x^2$.

Expressing in terms of db, we have the following:

SNR = 10 $\log_{10} (\sigma_x^2 / \sigma_e^2) = 6b + 10.8 + 10 \log_{10} (\sigma_x^2)$

It can be seen that the signal to noise ratio increases 6 db for each bit added to the register length. To prevent the signal from exceeding the dynamic range of the A/D converter, the incoming signal can be scaled. Let A be the scaling factor, the resulting signal to noise ratio will then be:

$$10 \log_{10}\left(\frac{A^2 \sigma_x^2}{\sigma_e^2}\right) = 6b + 10.8 + 10 \log_{10} (\sigma_x^2) + 20 \log_{10} (A)$$

Since A is less than 1, 20 \log_{10} (A) is negative and so by reducing the input amplitude, the signal to noise ratio is reduced. If A is assumed to be $(1/4)\sigma_x$, the signal to noise ratio is (6b-1.24)db. To obtain a signal to noise ratio of 60 db, 10 bits are required.

The effect of quantization for the coefficients is slightly different from that of the A/D conversion process. In the A/D conversion process, noise is introduced into the signal. In the quantization of the filter coefficients, the effect is a change from the ideal frequency response.

A.2 FIR Filter Noise

The filtering process of a signal is given by the following equation:

$$y(n) = \sum_{k=0}^{N-1} h(k) X (n-k)$$

which is a convolution sum process. The direct realization of such a system is a direct realization of the convolution sum process. The flow graph of the realization is shown in figure A3.

Since the multiplication of two N bit numbers produces a number with 2N bits, the product may be truncated to reduce to N bits. This corresponds to the addition of noise to the filter. Assuming that each product is rounded off before summation, the output noise is

$$f(n) = \sum_{k=0}^{N-1} e_k(n)$$

and the variance of the output noise is

$$\sigma_f^2 = M \frac{2^{-2b}}{12}$$

where M = number of coefficients

Notice that the noise is cumulative and depends on the number of coefficients used for the filter. Given the signal power, the signal to noise ratio for a fixed number of bits used can be computed. Notice also that if all 2N bits are kept for addition with the accumulator output truncated to N bit, the variance is reduced to $2^{-2b}/12$ which is identical to the noise produced by the A/D conversion process.

しいのうないない







Figure A2 - Droop in Sample-and-Holds



Figure A3 - Flow Graph for FIR Filter

Station 2
APPENDIX B

FIR FILTER DESIGN

There are many ways that finite impulse response filters can be designed. One of the design techniques is by the Fourier Series method in which the Fourier Series representation of the frequency response of the filter is computed and used as coefficients for the filter. Since the Fourier series have infinite representations, these coefficients have to be truncated. However, direct truncation leads to the Gibbs phenomenon which manifests itself as a fixed percentage overshoot and ripple before and after an approximated discontinuity in the frequency response. The size of these overshoots does not reduce by increasing the impulse response duration. Instead, the overshoot is confirmed to a smaller and smaller frequency range as N is increased. To solve this problem, various functions, known as windows are used to smooth the filter response. The various windows are shown in figure Bl.

While the window design technique is good, it has its flaws. One problem is that one needs a closed form expression for the Fourier Series coefficient which may be complicated to obtain. A more important problem is that the band edges cannot be specified exactly since the window "smears" the discontinuity in frequency. A second method for designing FIR filters is known as the frequency sampling method. In this method, the frequency response of a filter is specified and samples are taken at equal frequency spacings. The impulse response is obtained by using the interpolation equation. In the frequency sampling method, in order to obtain the best result it is important that the value for the transition region be an optimum value. To do the optimization problem, a series of equations have to be written and solved mathematically for the solution. This involves linear programming and a computer is needed as well as a simplex algorithm for minimization. The disadvantage to this design technique is that the selection of N as well as the selection of transition samples are based on experience and requires iterations of the computer program to find the optimal transition samples. Notice also that the ripples cannot be specified.

A third, and recommended technique for designing digital FIR filters is by means of the Remez Exchange Algorithm. The filters designed by using this technique have proved to be optimal filters. Optimal in the sense that the peak approximation error over the entire interval of approximation is minimized. This program was run on the NADC CDC 6600 computer and used for the design of the various filters and differentiator in the algorithms. The program is listed in the following pages.



Window .	Peak Amplitude of Side Lote (dB)	Transition Width of Main Lobe	Minimum Stopband Attenuation (dB)		
Rectangular	-13	4 m / N	-2:		
Bartlett	-25	8n/N	-25		
Hanning	-31	8#/N	-44		
Hamming	-41	Sn/N	-53		
Blackman	-57	12#jN	-74		

Figure B1 - Window Functions

1

in the second

RUGRAP	REFERE LUL 0000 FTR #3.0-P300 0P1=1 /3/03/29. 13.20.94. PAGE
	FREGRAM REMEXE (INPUT, CUTPUT)
	c
	C
,	C FREGRAP FOR THE DESIGN OF LINEAR PHASE FINITE IMPULSE
	C THREE TYPES OF FILTERS ARE INCLUDED-BANCPASS FILTERS
	C DIFFERENTIATORS, AND HILBERT TRANSFORM FILTERS.
10	C THE INPUT DATA CONSISTS OF 5 CARDS.
	C CARD 1FILTER LENGTH, TYPE OF FILTER (1-MULTIFLE
	C PASSBAND/STOPBAND, 2-DIFFERENTIATOR, 3-HILBERT TRANSFORM
	C FILTER), NUMBER OF BANDS, AND GRID
15	C DENSITY. (FORMAT - 413)
	C CARD 2-+BANDEDGES, LONER AND HEREP EDGES FOR FACH BAND
	C WITH A MAXINUM OF & BANDS. (FORMAT - 16F5.4)
	C
20	C CARD 3 CESIRED FUNCTION FOR DESIREE SLOPE IF A
	C CIFFERENTIATOR) FOR EACH BAND. (FORMAT - 8F5.2)
	C OTFEFDENTIATOR. THE HEIGHT FUNCTION IS INVERSELY
25	C PROPORTICNAL TO F. (FORMAT - 8F5.2)
	C
	C CARD 5RIPPLE AND ATTENUATION IN FASSBAND AND STOPBAND.
	C THIS CARD IS OPTIONAL AND CAN BE USED TO SPECIFY LOWPASS
10	C FILIERS DIRECTLY IN TERMS OF PASSBARD RIPPLE AND STOPBANC
30/	C THE AFPROXIMATION RELATIONSHIPS GIVEN IN 1
	C L. R. RAEINER, APPROXIMATE DESIGN RELATIONSHIP FOR
	C LOWPASS CIGITAL FILTERS, IEEE TRANS. ON AUDIO AND
	C ELECTROACUSTICS, VOL. AU-21, NO. 5, OCTOBER 73.
35	C ****WHEN THIS OPTION IS USED THE FILTER LENGTH ON
	C CARD I SHOULD BE SET TO U. THE (FURMAT - 2015.8)
	C SAMPLE INFUT DATA SETUP
	C
40	C THE FOLLOWING INPUT DATA SPECIFIES A LENGTH 32 BANDPASS
	C FILTER WITH STOPBANDS 0 TO 0.1 AND 0.425 TO 0.5, AND
	C PASSBAND FROM 0.2 TO 0.35 WITH WEIGHTING OF 10 IN THE
	C THE GETO DENSITY IS 32
45	C 032001003032
	C .C300.1000.2000.35C0.4250.5000
	C .00001.000.000C
	C 10.001.00010.00
= 0	
50	C DIFFEFENITATOR WITH SLOPE 4 AND METCHTING OF 1/F. THE OPTO
	C DENSITY IS ASSUMED TO BE 16.
	C 032002001000
	C .0000.5000
55	C 1.000

FROGRAP	RE	MEXC CDC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OFT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.54. PAGE 2
	c	1.000
	c	
	c	THE FOLLOWING INPUT CATA SPECIFIES A LOWPASS FILTER
	C	BY GIVING DIRECTLY THE RIPPLE AND ATTENUATION.
60	2	
	č	
	č	1.6001.000
	č	6.2660000000000000000000000000000000000
65	c	
		CCHMCN DES, HT, ALPHA, IEXT, NFCNS, NGRID, PI2, AD, DEV, X, Y, GRID
		CIMENSION IEXT(66),AD(66),ALFMA(66),X(66),Y(66)
		DIMENSION H(66)
		DIMENSION DES(1045), GRID(1045), HT (1045)
70		OIMENSION EDGE(20), FX(10), WTX(10), DEVIAT(10)
		CIPENSION CHEGA(50), RESPA(50)
		DUBLE PALLISION ONEGA, SUMAR, SUPAL, RESPA, ALIN, RIPPLE, SVRIP, DELIAF
		GOUDLE PRECISION FICOPI
75		FT2=6.283185387179586
		FI=3.1415926535899793
	C	
'	с	THE FROGRAM IS SET UP FOR A MAXIMUM LENGTH OF 128, BUT
	C	THIS UPPER LIMIT CAN BE CHANGED BY REDIMENSIONING THE
80	C	ARRAYS IEXT, AD, ALPHA, X, Y, H TO BE NFMAX/2 + 2.
	C	THE ARRAYS DES, GRIC, AND WT MUST BE DIMENSIONED
	C	16(NFPAX/2 + 2).
	L	
45	101	
.,	10.	JTYPE=0
	c	
	č	PRCGRAM INPUT SECTION
	C	
90		READ1, NFILT, JTYPE, NBANCS, LGRID
		L FORMAT (413)
		IF (NFILT.GT.NFMAX.OR.NFILT.EG.3) CALL ERRCR
		IF (NEANDS.LE.O) NEANDS=1
95	2	COTO DENETTY TO ACCUMENT TO BE 16 UNLESS SDECTRED
	č	ATHER STATES
	č	
		IF(LGFID.LE.0) LGRID=16
		JB=2*NBANDS
100		READ2, (:DGE(J),J=1,16)
	:	2 FORMAT (16(F5.4))
		READ3, (FX(J), J=1,8)
		3 FORMAT (8(F5.2))
105		REAU4, (NIX(J),J=1,C) CODMAT (A/CE 2))
105		
		IF (NFILT . EQ. D) GO TO 10
		NROX=C
		GO TC 11
110	11	0 READS, RIFFLE, ATTN

3

PROGRAF	REMEXC	CDC 6600 F	TN V3.0-P380	CPT=1 79/03/2	9. 13.28.54. FAGE
	5 FO	MAT (2015.8			
	RI	PPLE=1 7++ (R]	FPLE/20)		
	AT	TN=10** (-ATT	N/20)		
	RI	PPLE=(RIPPLE	-1)/ (RIPPLE+	1)	
115	R TI	PLE=DI CGIA	RTPPI F)		
	AT	TN=FLOGICIAT	TNI		
	SWI	DTD-DIGC F			
	34	KIP-KIPPLE			
	RT.	PPL = [0.0053	CA-LEIPPLETT.	2)+U.U/114-RIP	PLE-U. 4701J AITN
	1+(-0.00266-681	PPL: 21 -0.5	941-RIPPLE-0.4	278)
120	AT	TN=11.012174	C.51244*SVRI	P-0.51244+ATTN	
	CE	LTAF=ECGE(3)	-EDGE(2)		
	NF	ILT=RIPPLE/D	ELTAF-ATTN+(DELTAF**2)+1	
	NR	0X=1			
	11 NE	G=1			
125	IF	(JTYPE.EQ.1)	NEG=0		
	NO	DD=NFILT/2			
	NO	CD=NFILT-2+N	000		
	NE	CNS=NETIT/2			
	TE	INODG. 50.1.4	NO.NEG. 60.01	NECHS-NECHSAT	
170	r			11 043-41 CH3+1	
130	C				POTNTS TN THE COTO
	6 35	I UP THE GRI	U UENSITT.	THE NUMBER OF	PUINIS IN THE GRID
	C 15	CLIFICK FEW	GIN + II-GRI	D DENSITIZ	
	C		South Startes		
	GR	ID(1) = EDGE(1)			
135	DE	LF=LGRID+NFC	NS		
	CE	LF=C.5/CELF			
	IF	(NEG.EQ.U) G	O TO 135		
	IF	(EDGE(1).LT.	DELF) GRID(1)=DELF	
	135 CO	NTINUE			
140	J=	1			
1	L=	1			
	LB	AND=1			
-	140 FU	F=FDGF (1 +1)			
•	145 TE	MP=GRIC(1)			
11.5					
145	~ CA			THOS DECOMES	AND THE HETCHT
	C CH	LOULATE THE	DESIRED MAUN	LIQUE RESPONSE	AND THE WEIGHT
	C FU	NCITON ON IN	E GRIU		
	C				
	CE	S(J)=EFF(TEP	IF,FX,HTX,LEA	ND, JTYPE)	
150	NT	(J)=WATE(TEN	IP,FX,WTX,LEA	ND, JTYPE)	
	J=	J+1			
	GR	ID (J)= TEMP+C	DELF		
	IF	(GRID(J).GT.	FUPI GO TO 1	50	
	GO	TC 145			
155	15 . GR	ID (J-1)=FUF			
	DE	S (J-1) = EFF (F	UP.FX.WTX.LB	AND. JTYPE)	
	HT	(J-1)=#ATE (F	UP.FX.HTX.LB	AND. JTYPE)	
	LB	ANDEL BAND+1			
	1.=	1+2			
168	TE	LIDAND CT NE		460	
100	11	TO/ IN-SCORAL	1 1031 00 10	100	
	UR CO	TO 140			
	60	10 140			
	160 NG	FIU=J=1			
	IF	INEG.NE.NODI	GO TO 165		
155	IF	(GRID(NGRID)	.GT. (0.5-DEL	NGRID=NGRI	0-1

FROGRAM	95439	EXC COC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 1	3.28.54. FAGE
	165	CONTINUE	
	C		
	ċ	SET UP & NEW APPROXIMATION PROPIEM WHICH IS	COLTVAL ENT
	ř	TO THE OFTETNAL PROBLEM	
7.0	2	TO THE OWIGINAL PRODLEM	
<i><i>'</i>e</i>	L		
		IF (NEG) 170,170,180	
	170	IF (NCDD. EQ.1) GO TO 200	
	*	DO 175 J=1,NGRID	
		CHANGE=DCOS(PI*GRID(J))	
75		DES(J)=DES(J)/CHANGE	
	175	WT(J)=WT(J)+CHANGE	
		GO TO 20?	
	180	TE(NCCC. EQ.1) GO TO 190	
		DO 1AF JEL-NGPID	
A.0		CHANGE -OSTN (PT+GPTC(1))	
		UESIJI-UESIJI/CHANGE	
	10:	WI (J) = WI (J) = (HANGE	
		6010 200	
	190	CO 195 J=1,NGRIC	
85		CHANGE=DSIN(FI2+GRID(J))	
		DES(J)=DES(J)/CHANGE	
	195	WT (J)=WT (J) + CH ANGE	
	C		
	č	INITIAL GUESS FOR THE EXTREMAL FREQUENCIES	EQUALLY
90	c	SPACED ALCNG THE GRID	
	ř	STRUCT RECKE THE GREE	
	200	TEND-ELOAT INCETO-11/EL CATINECNEL	
	200	TO 345 LA NECKS	
	210	IEXT(J)=(J-1)+TEMP+1	
95		IEXT(NFCNS+1)=NGRID	
		NM1=NFCNS-1	
		NZ=NFCNS+1	
	C		
	C	CALL THE REMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHM TO DO THE	APPROXIMATION
0.0	c	PROBLEM	
	c		
	·	CALL REMETIENCE NOANDEL	
	-	CALL RENEZIEUGE, NDANUS/	
	C		
	C	CALCULATE THE IMPULSE PESPONSE.	
05	C		
		IF(NEG) 300,300,320	
	300	IF(NOCD.EG.0) GO TO 319	
		00 305 J=1.NM1	
	305	H(J)=0.5+ALPHA(NZ-J)	
10		H(NECNS) = ALPHA (1)	
		GG TO 350	
	24.0	HIII-C 258ALOHAINECNEL	
	210	00 748 1-2 NM4	
	315	H(J)=0.25*(ALPHA(NZ-J)+ALPHA(NFCNS+2-J))	
15		H(NFCNS) = 0.5*AL PHA(1)+C.25*ALPHA(2)	
		GO TC 350	
	320	IFINODD.EC.D) GO TO 330	
		H(1)=0.25+ALPHA(NFCNS)	
		H(2)=0.25*ALPHA(NM1)	
20		00 325 J=3.NM1	

5

いたというないというのはないないというというです。

FROGRAM	REMEXC COC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.54. FAGE
	325 H(.)=0.25*(ALPHA(N7-1)-ALPHA(NECNS+3-1))
	H(NFCNS) = 0.5+ALPHA(1) - (.25+ALPHA(3)
	H(NZ)=G.0
	GO TO 350
225	330 H(1)=0.25+ALPHA(NFCNS)
	00 335 J=2, NH1
	335 H(J)=0.25*(ALPHA(NZ-J)-ALPHA(NFCNS+2-J))
	H (NFCNS) = C.5+ALPHA(1) - C.25+ALPHA(2)
270	CROCOLD CUIDUL CONTON
230 6	PROGRAP CUIPUI SECTION
	POINT 74.0
	340 FORMAT(1)
	350 FRINT 360
235	360 FORMAT (25X. *FINITE INPULSE RESPONSE (FIR) */
	125X, *LINEAR PHASE DIGITAL FILTER DESIGN*/
	225X, TREMEZ EXCHANGE ALGORITHMT/)
	IF (JTYPE.EQ.1) PRINT 365
	365 FORMAT(25X, BANDPASS FILTER*/)
240	IF (JTYPE.EQ.2) PRINT 370
	370 FOPMAT(25X, +DIFFERENTIATOR+/)
	IF (JTYPE.EQ.3) PRINT 375
	375 FORMAT (25X, +HILBERT TRANSFORMER+/)
	PRINT 378, NFILT
245	3/8 FORMAT(25X, +FILICR LENGTH = +, 13/)
	IF (NROX+EQ.I) PRINT 3/9
	STS FURMATIZESA, FILTER LENGTH DETERMINED BY APPROATHATION //
	TRAN JOJ
250	n 31 Jai NECNS
	K=NFILT+1-J
	IF (NEG.EG.C) PRINT 382.J.H(J).K
	IF (NEG.EG.1) PRINT 383, J, H(J), K
	381 CONTINUE
255	382 FORMAT(20X,+H(+,I3,+) = +,E15.8,+ = H(+,I4,+)+)
	383 FORMAT(20X, +H(+,I3,+) = +,E15.8,+ = -H(+,I4,+)+)
	IF (NEG.EG.1.AND.NODD.EG.1) PRINT 384,NZ
	$384 \text{ FORMAT}(20x_{7}+H(+,I3,+) = 0.0+)$
	D0_450_K=1,NBANDS,4
260	KUP=K+3
	IF (KUP.GT.NEANCS) KUP=NBANDS
	FRINT 385, (J, J=K, KUP)
	907 FURNAL (7 244,44 " BANUT, 13,04/)
265 .	$F = I \times I \times J \to I + I \to I \to I \to J \to I + J \to I + J \to I \to J \to$
205	PPTNT 365. [DREF 34ND JEK.KUP]
	195 FORMAT(2X, +UPPEO RANO EDGF+, 5F15, 9)
	IF (JTYPE .NE. 2) PRINT 400 . (FX (J) . J=K.KUP)
	400 FORMAT (2X, +DESIRED VALUE+, 2X, 5F15.9)
270	IF(JTYPE.EQ.2) PRINT 4"5.(FX(J),J=K,KUP)
	405 FORMAT (2x, +DESIRED SLOFE+, 2x, 5F15.9)
	FRINT 410, (WTX (J), J=K, KUP)
	410 FORMAT(2X, *WEIGHTING*, 6X, 5F15.9)
	CO 420 J=K,KUP
275	420 DEVIAT(J)=DEV/WTX(J)

NADC-79153-40

.

FROGRAM	REFEXC CDC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.54. PAGE 6
	FRINT 425, (DEVIAT(J), J=K, KUP)
	425 FORMAT (2X, *DEVIATION*, 6X, 5F15.9)
	IF (JTYPE .NE.1) GO TO 450
	00 430 J=K.KUP
280	IF (FX(J).EC.1.0) DEVIAT(J)=(1.0+DEVIAT(J))/(1.0-DEVIAT(J))
	430 JEVIAT(J)=20.0+ALOG19(DEVIAT(J))
	PRINT 435, (DEVIATLJ), J=K, KUP)
	435 FORMAT(2x, +DEVIATION IN DB+, 5F15, 9)
	450 CONTINUE
285	PRINT 455 , (GRIC(IEXT(J)), J=1, NZ)
	455 FORMAT(/2X.+EXTREMAL FREQUENCIES+/(2X.5F12.7))
	PRINT 460
	460 FORMAT(1+1)
	C CALCULATE FREQUENCY RESPONSE
290	FRINT 71C
	710 FORMAT(18X* FREQUENCY RESPONSE
	CO 610 IKA = 1,50
	CMEGA(IKA) = 0,010000000+(IKA - 1)
	SUMAR = 0.0
295	SUMAC = 0.0
	CO 620 NIK = 1, NFCNS
	SUMAR=SUMAR+H(NIK) + (DCCS (PI2+OMEGA(IKA) + (NIK-1)) +
	1DCOS(PI2+OMEGA(IKA)+(NFILT-NIK)))
	SUMAC = SUMAC + H(NIK)*(DSIN(PI2+OMEGA(IKA)*(NIK-1)) +
300	10SIN(FI2+OMEGA(IKA)+(NFILT-NIK))
	620 CONTINUE
	IF (NCDD.EQ.1) SUMAR=SUMAR-H(NFCNS)+DCOS(PI2+CMEGA(IKA)+(NFCNS
	1-1))
	IF (NODD.EQ.1) SUMAC=SUMAC-H(NFCNS) DSIN(FI2+OMEGA(IKA)+(NFCNS
305	1-1))
	RESPA(IKA) = DSQRT(SUMAR++2 + SUMAC++2)
	RESPA(IKA) = 20.0+0LOG10(RESFA(IKA))
	PRINT 630, OMEGA(IKA), RESPA(IKA)
	630 FORMAT (15X, D12.4,15X, C12.4)
310	610 CONTINUE
	IF(NFILT.NE.0) GO TO 130
	CONTINUE
	ENC

. •



A NUMBER OF A DAY OF

いたとうないのという

E.M. E.M.

ŝ



100

Contraction of the second

•

5

SUBROUTINE	ERROR	coc	6660	FTN	V3.0-P380	0PT=1	79/33/29.	13.28.54. FA
								13.CO.34. PA

	SUBROUTI	NE ERROR					
1	FORMAT (* STOP	••••••	ERROR	IN	INPUT	DATA	••••••
	END						

- M. S. C. 34

1

1

	SUBROUTINE		REFEZ	COC	5600	FTN	v3.	0-P3		0PT=1	79/	03/29	. 13	.28.5	4. PAGE	E
			s	UBROUT	TINE	REME	ZIED	GE.N	BAN	05)						
		C														
		č	F	OR TH	E NEI	GHTS	D CH	EBYC	HEV	APPR	OXIMA	ATION	OF	A CONT	TNUOUS	5
-	5	č	F	UNCTI	ON WI	TH A	SUM	OF	COS	INES.	INF	PUTS	TO TI	AE SUB	ROUTIN	NE
		C	A	REA	DENSE	GR I	D WH	ICH	REF	LACES	THE	FREAL	JENC	AXIS	, THE	
		C	0	ESIRE	D FUN	CTIC	N ON	THI	SG	RID,	THE	EIGH	FUI	NCTION	ON TH	HE -
		č		XTREM	AL FR	EQUE	NCIE	S.	THE	PROG	RAN	ININI	IZES	THE C	HEBYCH	AEV
10)	C	5	REOR	BY DE	TERM	ININ	G TH	E B	EST L	OCATI	ION OF	TH	E EXTR	EMAL	
		ç	F	REQUE	NCIES	(PC	DINTS	OF	MAX	INUM	EPROP	R) AND	D TH	EN CAL	CULAT	ES
		c	1	HE CC	EPP IC	IENI	SOF	THE	BE	SI AP	PROX1	IMATIC	JN.			
		•	C	OMMON	DES.	WT . A	LPHA	.IEX	T .N	FCNS.	NGRIC	. FI2.	AC. 0	DEV.X.	Y. GRIC)
15	19		D	IMENS	ION E	DGE	201					10.00				
			0	IMENS	ION I	EXTO	66) .	ADIS	6).	ALPHA	(66),	X (66)		56)		
			0	IMENS.	ION D	ESU1	0451	• GR I	0(1	451,	NT (10	145)				
			D	OUBLE	PREC	ISIC	N PI	2. DN	UN,	DDEN.	DTENP	.A.P.				
20			C	OUBLE	PREC	ISIO	N AD	.DEV	, x,	1						
		ç					-		-					TONE		
		č		n: FR	UGRAM	ALL	.0#3	A 11 A	X IN		NDER	0. 1	ERA	TOWS	UF 25	
		-	1	TRMAX	=25											
25	5		C	EVL=-	1.0											
			N	Z=NFC	NS+1											
			N	ITER=												
			100 C	ONTIN	UE											
30)		I	EXTIN	ZZ = N	GRIC	1+1									
			T	FINTT	FR.GT	+1		60	TO	400						
			ċ	0 110	J=1,	NZ										
			0	TEMP=	GRIDO	IEXT	((1))									
3	,		110 9	TEMPS	DCOSI	DTEN	IP+PI	2)								
			Ĵ	ET= (N	FCNS-	1)/1	5+1									
			C	0 120	J=1.	NZ										
			120 A	C (J) =	0(1,0	Z,Jé	ET)									
			č	CENSO	.0											
			K	=1												
			0	0 130	J=1.	NZ										
-			-	TEMES		-										
			č	NUM=C	NUM+D	TEMP	5									
			C	TEMPE	K= AD(J)/H	T(L)									
			110 .	DEN= DI	DE N+O	TEMP										
5	,		0	EV=CN	UNICO	EN										
			N	U=1												
			I	FIDEV	.GT.J	.0)	NU= -	1								
			C	ENT-N	U+CEV											
51			ĉ	0 140	.1=1 .	N7										

SUBROUT INE	REPEZ	CDC 6600	FTN V	. 0-P380	0PT=1	79/03/29.	13.28.54.	,
	L	TEXT(J)					PAGE	
	CT	EMF=K+DEV	WT(L)					
	140 4-	JI = 052 (L)	+OTEMP					
60	TE	IDEN.GE.	EVI) GO					
	ĊA	LL CUCH		10 190				
	GO	TO 400						
	150 CS	VL=CEV						
	JC	HNGE=0						
65	K1	=IEXT(1)						
	KN	Z=IEXT(NZ	:)					
	KL	OW=0						
	NU	T=-NU						
70 0	7=	1						
					PEONEN			
	AP	FROXINATI	ON	REAR P	REQUEN	IES OF THE	BESI	
•	200 TF	(J. FO. N77	1 YN7=0	OMP				
75	IF	(J.GE.NZZ	1 GO TO	300				
	KU	F=IEXT IJ	1)					
	L=	IEXT(J)+1						
	NU	T=-NUT						
	IF	(J.EQ.2)	Y1=COM					
80	CO	MP=DEV						
	IF	IL.GE. KUP	5 GO TO	520				
		REGETCL .	511 11 81					
	OT	FNC=NIT+F	DD-COM					
85	IF	OTEMP .L.F	.0.0) (O TO 22	0			
	CO	NP=NUT +ER	R		•			
	210 L=	L+1						
	IF	IL.GE.KUP) GO TO	215				
	ER	R=GEE(L.N	(Z)					
90	ER	R= (ERR - DE	S(L))+	T(L)				
MARK KETT KERTING	OT	EMP=NUT+	RR-COMP		_			
	11	IUTEMP .LE		0 10 21	5			
	60	TC 21 C	ĸ					
95	215 IE	TIJJEL -1						
	J=	J+1						
	KL	CH=L-1						
	JC	HNGE=JCHN	GE+1					
	GC	TC 200						
100	220 L=	L-1						
	225 L=	L-1						
	IF	IL.LE. KLO	WI GO 1	0 25"				
	60	REGEELLIN	C /1					
105	ER OT	ENG-NUTTE	99-COM					
•••	IF	OTEMP .GT	.0.0) 6	0 TO 23	0			
	IF	JCHNG - L	E.0) GC	TO 225				
	GO	TO 260						
	230 CO	MP=NUT+ER	R					
110	235 L=	L-1						

SUBROUTINE	REMEZ COC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1	79/03/29. 13.28.54.
	IFIL.LE.KLOWI GO TO 240	
	ERR=GEE(L.NZ) .	PAGE 3
	ERF=(ERR-DES(L))+WT(L)	
	DTENF=NUT*ERR-COMP	
115	IF (DTEMP .LE. 0. 9) GO TO 240	•
	COMPENUTAFRR	
~	GO TC 235	
*	240 KLONETEXTED	
7	TFXT(.I)=(+1	
120	1= 141	
	ICHNES + ICHNESA 1	
	CO TO 200	
	270 L+1241137+1	
	IF (JCHNG2.61.0) 60 TO 215	
125	755 L=L+1	
	IFIL.GE. KUPI GO TO 260	
	ERR=GEEIL,NZ)	
•	ERA=LERR-DES(LII+WT(L)	
	OTENP=NUT*ERR-CONP	
130	IFIDTEMP.LE.O. DI GO TO 255	
	COMP=NUT +ERR	
	GO TO 210	
	260 KLCW=IEXT(J)	
	J= J+1	
135	GO TO 200	
	300 IF(J.GT.N22) GO TO 320	
	IF (K1.GT .TEXT(1)) K1=TEXT(1)	
	IF (KNZ .L T. TEXT (NZ)) KNZSTEXT (NZ)	
	NUTISNUT	
140	NUTE-NU	
	1=0	
	KIIP=K1	
	COND= (N7 + (1 . 00 CO1)	
	1004-1	
145		
142		
	:RH=(ERR-DES(L))+WT(L)	
	UTCHP=NUT+ERR-COMP	
150	IF (DTEMP .LE. J. C) GO TO 310	
	COMP=NUT *ERR	
	J=NZZ	
	GO TO 210	
	315 LUCK=6	
155	GO TC 325	
	320 IF (LUCK. GT. 9) GO TO 350	
	IF (CCMP. GT. V1) V1=COMP	
	K1=IEXT(NZZ)	
	325 L=NGRID+1	
160	KLON=KNZ	
	NUT=-NUT1	
	COMP= Y1+ (9.03601)	
	330 1 =1 -1	
	TELLER KLOWL GO TO 340	
165	FRESCEFIL N7)	

Sa the state of the second

SUBROUTINE	PENEZ COC 666" FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.54.FAGE
	FEF= (FRR - DFS (L))*WT (L)
	IF (DIF MP -1 - 0- 0) GO TO 330
178	COMPENSIT + FDD
* * •	
176	
	PO 36A 1=1.NECNS
1.80	
r	CALCULATION OF THE POPEETFICATE OF THE BEST ADDROVIMATION
	USING THE TWEERE REGERE ECHOTER TALEROOM
109 C	GANG THE INVERSE DISCRETE FOURIER TRANSFORM
190	
105	TELEDERITY ED D D AND ERCHIGANDEN ED D EN WWW-4
193	TEINER LIJSEN USU ANUSEUGEIZ NDANUSJSEN USJ KKAEI
20.4	
200	
205	
205	
	VT-/VT-BOJ/AA
	ET - ACCEVITY / DT 3
210	
215	
	ADA TELLATEVEL IT ESHI CO TO LIE
	CPIDIIIEFT
	A/ 1) =GEE / 1 . N7)
	LOS CONTINIE
220	
	4F 10001017 6=0=1

State States

SUBROUTINE	REMEZ COC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.	54.
	430 CONTINUE FAGE	5
	GRID(1)=GTEMP	
	CDEN=FI2/CN	
	00 510 J=1.NFCNS	
225	DTEMP=G.D	
	CNUM= (J-1) +00EN	
	IF(NH1.LT.1) GO TO 505	
	CO 500 K=1.NM1	
	SJC DTEMP=CTEMP+A(K+1) + CCOS(DNUM+K)	
230	505 DTEMP=2. 9-DTEMF+4(1)	
	510 ALPHA(J) = CTEMP	
	00 550 J=2.NFCNS	
	550 ALPHA(J) = 2* ALPHA(J) /CN	
	ALPHA(1) = ALPHA(1)/CN	
235	IF (KKK.EC.1) GO TO 545	
	F(1)=2.0+ALPHA (NFCNS)+EB+ALPHA (NM1)	
	P(2)=2.0+44+AL FH4 (NFCNS)	
	Q(1)=ALP+A(NFCNS-2)-ALPHA(NFCNS)	
	CO 540 J=2.NM1	
240	IFEJ.LT.NMIN GC TO 515	
	AA=0.5*AA	
	38=0.5*88	
	515 CONTINUE	
	F(J+1)=0.0	
245	CO 520 K=1,J	
	A(K)=F(K)	
	520 F(K) =2.0 *EE*A(K)	
	P(2)=F(2)+A(1)*2.3*AA	
	JM1=J-1	
250	00 525 K=1, JM1	
	525 P(K)=P(K)+G(K)+A4+A(K+2)	
	JF1=J+1	
	CO 530 K=3, JP1	
	530 P(K)=F(K)+AA*A(K-1)	
255	IFIJ.EC.NMIJ GO TO 540	
	00 535 K=1.J	
	535 G(K)=-A(K)	
	G(1)=Q(1)+ALPHA(NFCNS-1-J)	
	540 CONTINUE	
260	CO 543 J=1.NFCNS	
	543 ALPHA (J) = P (J)	
	545 CONTINUE	
	IF(NFCNS.GT.3) RETURN	
	ALPHA (NF CNS+1) = 0.0	
265	AL PHA (NF CNS+2) = 0.0	
	RETURN	
	ENC	

FUNCTION	C	CDC 660C FTN	V3.0-P380 C	PT=1 79/	3/29. 13.	28.54. PAGE	
FUNCTION	C 1	COC 6600 FTN	V3.0-P380 C	CPT=1 79/	3/29. 13.	28.54. PAGE	1
FUNCTION	C (COUBLE PRECI	V3.0-P380 C	ON D(K,N,M	13/29. 13.	28.54. PAG	1
FUNCTION	c (COC 660C FTN Couble Preci Function TC	V3.0-P380 C Sion Functio Calculate To	CPT=1 79/ On D(K,N,M He Lagrang	3/29. 13. • INTERPO	28.54. PAGE	1
FUNCTION	c c	COC 6600 FTN COUBLE PRECI Function to Coefficient	V3.0-P380 C Sion Functio Calculate To For USE IN	ON D(K,N,M He Lagrang The Functi	3/29. 13. E INTERPO	28.54. PAGE	1
FUNCTION	c c c	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W	V3.0-P380 C Sion functio Calculate to For USE in T,Alpha,IEX	ON D(K,N,M ME LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG	S3/29. 13. E INTERPO ON GEE RID.PI2.A	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G	RID
FUNCTION	c c	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W DIMENSION IE	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTIO CALGULATE TO FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT (66),AD (60 S(14)65).CPT	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M ME LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6)	3/29. 13. E INTERPCI ON GEE RID.PI2.AU (6),X(66),Y	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G V (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION	C C	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W DIMENSION IE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTIO CALGULATE TO FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66).AD(60 S(1045).GRII SION AG.OFV	PT=1 79/ ON D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT -X-Y	C3/29. 13. E INTERPCI ON GEE RID.PI2.A4 6).X(66). (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G Y (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION	C C	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W DIMENSION IE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTIO CALGULATE TO FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66).AD(60 S(1045).GRII SION AG,DEV SION Q	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT ,X,Y	3/29. 13. E INTERPCI ON GEE RID.PI2.A(6),X(66),Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G Y (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION	c c	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W DIMENSION IE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTIO CALGULATE TO FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66),AD(60 S(1045),GRI SION AG,DEV SICN Q SICN PI2	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),WT ,X,Y	3/29. 13. E INTERPCI ON GEE RID.PI2.A(6),X(66),Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G Y (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5	C C	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES.W DIMENSION IES DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DOTAL	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALGULATE TI FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66).AD(60 S(1045).GRI SION AG,DEV SIGN Q SION PI2	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,H HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T.NFCNS.NG 6), ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PE INTERPCI ON GEE RIC.PI2.A(6).x(66). (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10	C C	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMEN DES.W DIMENSION IE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DD=1.0 Q=X(K)	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALGULATE TI FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66),AD(60 S(1045),GRI SION AG,DEV SIGN Q SION PIZ	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,H HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13.) E INTERPCI ON GEE RIC, PI2, A(6), X(66), Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10	c c	COC 6600 FTN COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMCN DES.M DIMENSION IE: DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DD=1.0 Q=X(K) DO 3 L=1.M	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALCULATE TI FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66),AD(60 S(1045),GRI SION AC,DEV SICN Q SICN PI2	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG G),ALPHA(E D(1045),WT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13.) E INTERPCI ON GEE RIC, PI2, A(6), X(66), Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10	C C C	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMEN DES.M DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DE1.0 G=X(K) DO 3 L=1.M CO 2 J=L.N.M	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALCULATE TH FOR USE IN T T,ALPHA,IEX XT (66),AD (60) S(1045),GR II SION AG,DEV SICN Q SICN PI2	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),WT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PEINTERPCI ON GZE RIC.PI2.A4 (6).X(66). (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G Y (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10	C C C	CDC 6600 FTN COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT OFMEN DES.M DIMENSION DE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DD=1.0 G=X(K) DO 3 L=1.M EO 2 J=L.N.M IF(J-K)1.2.1	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALCULATE TI FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT (66),AD (60) S(1045),GRII SION AG,DEV SICN Q SICN PI2	PT=1 79/ ON D(K,N,H HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PEINTERPCI ON GZE RIC.PI2.A4 (6),X(66),Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G Y (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10 15	C C C	CDC 6600 FTN COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT TO COMMON DES.W JIMENSION DES DIMENSION DES COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DE1.0 G=X(K) DO 3 L=1.M IF(J-K)1.2.1 C=2.0*D*(Q-X)	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALCULATE TI FOR USE IN T, ALPHA,IEX XT (66), AD (60) S(1045), GR II SION AG, DEV SION Q SION PI2	PT=1 79/ ON D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 0(1045),MT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. E INTERPCI ON GZE RID, PI2, AN (6), X(66), Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10 15	C C C 1 2	CDC 6600 FTN COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT TO COMMON DES.M DIMENSION DE DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DE1.0 Q=X(K) DO 3 L=1.M IF(J-K)1.2.1 CONTINUE	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALCULATE TI FOR USE IN T, ALPHA, IEX XT (66), AD (60) SION AD, DEV SION AD, DEV SION PI2	2PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),MT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PEINTERPCI ON GZE RID, PI2, AN (6), X(66), Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10 15	C C C 1 2 3	COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COMMON DES.W DIMENSION DES DIMENSION DES COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DE1.0 G=x(K) DO 3 L=1.M DF(J-K)1.2.1 D=2.0*D*(0-X CONTINUE CONTINUE	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTIO CALGULATE TO FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66),AD(60 S(1045),GRII SION AG,DEV SICN Q SICN PI2	PT=1 79/ ON D(K,N,M HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI T,NFCNS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),MT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PE INTERPCI ON GEE RIC.PI2.AI (6),X(66),Y (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID
FUNCTION 5 10 15	C C 1 2 3	COUBLE PRECI FUNCTION TO COEFFICIENT COMMON DES,W DIMENSION IES DIMENSION DE COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI COUBLE PRECI DE1.0 G=x(K) DO 3 L=1,M DO 3 L=1,M IF (J-K)1,2,1 CONTINUE CONTINUE CONTINUE	V3.0-P380 C SION FUNCTI CALGULATE TI FOR USE IN T,ALPHA,IEX XT(66),AD(60 S(1045),GRI SION AG,DEV SICN Q SION PI2	PT=1 79/ DN D(K,N,H HE LAGRANG THE FUNCTI THE FUNCTS,NG 6),ALPHA(6 D(1045),HT ,X,Y	G3/29. 13. PE INTERPCI ON GEE RIC.PI2.A(6).x(66). (1045)	28.54. PAGE LATICN D.DEV.X.Y.G (66)	E 1 RID

the second second

NADC-79153-40

		NADC-/9153-0	40		
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF	97=1 79/03/29. 13	8.28.54. FAGE	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660	00 FTN V3.0-P380 OF	PT=1 79/J3/29.13	5.28.54. FAGE	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 Double F Functio	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO SVALUATE THE	PT=1 79/03/29. 13 GEE(K,N) FPFQUENCY PESPON	5.28.54. FAGE	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 Double F Functic Lagrange	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR	PT=1 79/03/29. 13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPON RMULA IN THE BARYO	S.28.54. FAGE Se using the Centric form	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 Double F Functic Lagrange Cormen C	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPHA, IEXT,	GEE(K,N) FREQUENCY RESPON RMULA IN THE BARYON NFCNS, NGRIG, FI2,AG	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTFIC FORM D.DEV,X,Y,GRID	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 Double P Functic Lagrange Common C Dimensic Dimensic	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON IEXT(66), AD(66),	GEE(K,N) FREQUENCY RESPON RMULA IN THE BARYON ALPHA (66),X (66),T	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE CDC 660 Double F Functio Lagrange Common d Dimensio Dimensio Gouble F	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(3) PRECISION P.C.D.XF	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K,N) FREQUENCY RMULA IN THE BALPHA (66),X (661,Y) L045), MT (1045)	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE CDC 660 Double F Functio Lagrange Commen d Dimensio Double F Couble F	CC FTN V3.0-P360 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(6 PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON NFCNS.NGRIC.FI2.AC ALPHA(66).X(661.X) L045).MT(1045)	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV,X,Y,GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 Double F Functio Lagrange Common d Dimensio Dimensio Double F Couble F	CC FTN V3.0-P360 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(3 PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV, X4	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON FRENS.NGRIE.FI2.AC NFCNS.NGRIE.FI2.AC ALPHA (66).X (661.X (S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 DOUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE Common d DIMENSIO DIMENSIO DOUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 VE-GETO	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON DES(1045), GRID(6) PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV, X,	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYONS NFCNS.NGRIC.FI2.AC ALPHA (66).X (661.X (SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE CDC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE COMMON O DIMENSIO OUMENSIO OUMENSIO OUMELE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRIDO XF=CCS	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT, ALPHA, IEXT, ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(6), PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV, X, (K) (K)	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K,N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON NFCNS, NGRIC, FI2,AC ALPHA (66), X (661, Y) L045), MT (1045) Y	SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10	GEE COC 660 DOUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE COMMON D DIMENSIO OIMENSIO GOUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRID0 XF=GRID0 CF=00000000000000000000000000000000000	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT.ALPHA.IEXT. ON IEXT(66).AD(66). ON DES(1045).GRID(5). PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION AD.DEV.X. (K) (FI2*XF)	PT =1 79/03/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON NFCNS, NGRIC, FI2, AD ALPHA (66), X (661, 1) L045), MT (1045) Y	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE COMMON C DIMENSIO OUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRID0 XF=GRID0 CO_1 J=1	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT.ALPHA.IEXT.) ON IEXT(66).AD(66). ON DES(1045).GRID(5) PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD.DEV.X. (K) (FI2*XF) 1.N	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON FRENS, NGRIE, FI2, AD NFCNS, NGRIE, FI2, AD ALPHA (66), X (661, Y) L045), WT (1045) Y	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV,X,Y,GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE COMMON C DIMENSIO OUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=3.0 XF=GRIDO XF=GRIDO CO 1 J=1 C=XF-X (J	CO FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT.ALPHA.IEXT.N ON IEXT(66).AD(66). ON DES(1045).GRID(5) PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD.DEV.X. (K) (F12*XF) 1.N J	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARY(NFCNS, NGRIE, FI2, AD ALPHA (66), X (661, Y) L045), WT (1045) Y	S. 28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D. DEV.X.Y.GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIC LAGRANGE COMMCN C DIMENSIC OUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=3.0 XF=GRIDO XF=OCCSC O=0.0 CO 1 J=1 C=AD(J)/	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT, ALPHA, IEXT, N ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON OES(1045), GRID(5) PRECISION P.C.O.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV.X, (K) (F12*XF) 1.N J) /C	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYONS RMULA IN THE BARYONS RMULA, IN THE BARYONS ALPMA (66), X (660, N) RMULA L045), HT (1045) RMULA Y RMULA	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTFIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10 15	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIC LAGRANGE COMMCN C DIMENSIC OUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRIDO XF=GRIDO XF=OCCSC O=0.0 CO 1 J=1 C=XF-X(J)/ C=D+C	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.MT, ALPMA, IEXT, N ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(5) PRECISION P.C. D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV.X, (K) (FI2*XF) 1.N J) /C	PT=1 79/J3/29. 13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARY(NFCNS.NGRIC.FI2.AC ALPHA(66).X(661.T L045).WT(1045)	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTFIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10 15	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIC LAGRANGE COMMON C DIMENSIC DIMENSIC GOUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRIDO XF=GRIDO CO 1 J=1 C=AD(J)/ C=D+C 1 P=P+C+YC	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT, ALPHA, IEXT, I ON IEXT(66), AD(66), ON DES(1045), GRID(2) PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD, DEV, X, (K) (FI2*XF) 1.N J) /C (J)	PT=1 79/J3/29. 13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYO NFCNS.NGRIC.FI2.AD ALPHA(66).X(661.T 1045).WT(1045)	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTFIC FORM D.DEV,X.Y.GRID (66)	1
FUNCTION 5 10 15	GEE COC 660 COUBLE F FUNCTIO LAGRANGE COMMCN D DIMENSIO DIMENSIO COUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F COUBLE F P=J.0 XF=GRIDO XF=GRIDO CO 1 J=1 C=XF-X(J) C=AD(J)/ C=D+C 1 P=P+C+Y(GEE=F/D	CC FTN V3.0-P380 OF PRECISION FUNCTION ON TO EVALUATE THE E INTERFOLATION FOR DES.WT.ALPHA.IEXT. ON DES(1045),GRID(5) PRECISION P.C.D.XF PRECISION PI2 PRECISION AD.DEV.X. (K) (F12*XF) 1.N J) /C (J)	PT =1 79/J3/29.13 GEE(K.N) FREQUENCY RESPONS RMULA IN THE BARYON FRENS.NGRIC.FI2.AC ALPHA(66).X(661.X) 1045).MT(1045) .Y	S.28.54. FAGE SE USING THE CENTRIC FORM D.DEV.X.Y.GRID ((66)	1

SUBROUTINE OUCH COC 6600 FTN V3.0-P380 OPT=1 79/03/29. 13.28.54. FAGE

5

State of the second state of the

DISTRIBUTION LIST

REPORT NO. NADC-79153-40

AIRTASK NO. WF21-200-000 Work Unit No. ZC902

No. of Copies

1

1

NAVAIRSYSCOM, AIR-950D	5
(2 for retention)	-
(1 for AIR-370)	
(1 for AIR-5330)	
(1 for AIR-53301)	
CNO	2
(1 for OP-951)	-
(1 for OP-952)	
COMOPTEVFOR	1
DDC	12

A Bur Swan & hard